
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Summary Accounts Payable July 16th to July 30th 2015


10.  Educational Fund Accounts Payable $48,908.66


20. Operations & Maint Fund Accounts Payable $21,787.41


30.  Bond & Interest Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


40.  Transportation Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


50.  Municipal Retirement Fund $0.00


60. Site & Construction Accounts Payable $0.00


70.  Working Cash Fund Transfer of Interest $0.00


80. Tort Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


90.  Life Safety Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


Total A/P Disbursements $70,696.07


A/P Check Numbers 132625-132666
Direct A/P Deposit 1849-1850
Void Check Numbers


10. Educational Fund Payroll $240,281.78


20. Operations & Maint Fund Payroll $3,765.61


50.  Municipal Retirement Fund Payroll $2,759.51


Total Payroll Disbursements $244,047.39


Total Cash Disbursements $314,743.46


Submitted by: Trish Culhane
Approved by:


Date: July 31st 2015 _________________________________







1 1Checking Account:


07/30/2015 13,180.28132625 ABM Janitorial MidwestABMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 6,123.2820 2540 322 00ABM-Custodial Labor8324058


07/20/2015 7,057.0020 2540 322 00ABM-Custodial Labor8324065


07/30/2015 75.96132626 Alarm Detection Systems IALARMDETECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/12/2015 75.9620 2544 310 00Care and Upkeep - EquipAug-Oct 15


07/30/2015 787.27132627 AMERICAN NATIONAL SPRINKLER &
LIGHTING


ANSPRINKLCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/01/2015 787.2720 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service230282


07/30/2015 366.00132628 Apple Computer IncAPPLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/16/2015 366.0010 196Teachers Computer Buy4346118189


07/30/2015 896.45132629 AT&TATTCAROLSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/11/2015 896.4520 2540 340 00Communication4015109203


07/30/2015 5,000.00132630 Benefit AdvantageBENEFITADVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/27/2015 5,000.0020 456 004Flex Medical Account07/27/15


07/30/2015 543.13132631 Cambium Learning, Inc.CAMBIUMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/16/2015 543.1310 1200 410 00Spec Ed General SuppliesRI 1476192 16305


07/30/2015 762.07132632 Chicago Filter SupplyCHICAGOFILCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


06/25/2015 398.4220 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies17834


07/15/2015 363.6520 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies18069


07/30/2015 2,990.00132633 ComcastCOMCASTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/15/2015 2,990.0010 2225 300 01Comcast Network36662512


07/30/2015 3,235.00132634 Consortium for Educational ChangeCONSORTIUMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 3,235.0010 2210 300 00Consultant Fees8346


07/30/2015 251.00132635 CORNER BAKERYCORNERBAKECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 251.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11002975290125


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 1


07/30/2015 5:51 PM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/30/2015 28.24132636 PATRICIA CULHANECULHANECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 21.5010 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel07/29/15


07/21/2015 6.7410 2140 410 00General Supplies7/21/15


07/30/2015 799.00132637 Don Johnston, IncDONJOHNNSTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/16/2015 799.0010 1200 420 00Spec Ed Instruct Mtls00429158


07/30/2015 3,011.01132638 Dremel Service CenterDREMELSERVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 3,011.0110 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies07/13/15


07/30/2015 20.62132639 Chike ErokwuEROKWUCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 20.6210 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel07/29/15


07/30/2015 55.73132640 Fed ExFEDERALEXCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 55.7310 2310 410 00Board Supplies5-102-65899


07/30/2015 100.48132641 Flinn Scientific IncFLINNCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 100.4810 1120 410 09Science Supplies1879968


07/30/2015 1,935.64132642 Follett School Solutions, IncFOLLETTSCHCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 16.9510 2410 410 00General Supplies706023F-5


07/10/2015 1,918.6910 2220 430 00Library Books706026-0


07/30/2015 4,007.50132643 GaggleGAGGLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/15/2015 4,007.5010 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies30626


07/30/2015 377.94132644 General BindingGBCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/01/2015 377.9410 2223 320 00Repair and Maint2407904


07/30/2015 140.16132645 Genesis TechnologiesGENESISCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


05/19/2015 140.1610 2225 400 02Printer Ink/Toner509154


07/30/2015 150.00132646 IASA NORTH COOK REGIONIASANCOOKCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 150.0010 2310 640 00Board Dues and Fees2015/2016 Membe


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 2


07/30/2015 5:51 PM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/30/2015 900.00132647 IASBIASBCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 900.0010 2310 640 00Board Dues and Fees013229


07/30/2015 29.75132648 Illinois State PoliceILSTATCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 29.7510 2310 316 00Board Background Checks6/1-6/30/15


07/30/2015 825.00132649 Independent Building Maintenance Co. IncINDEPENDENCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/01/2015 825.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service31229


07/30/2015 1,038.00132650 Industrial Appraisal CoINDAPPCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 1,038.0010 2310 318 05Board Audit Service2015 6D4-1524


07/30/2015 2,994.00132651 JDL HORIZONS, LLCJDLHORIZONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 2,994.0010 2225 400 01Tech Software150801-9


07/30/2015 21.72132652 DALE LUKSHALUKSHACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 21.7210 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel7/29/15


07/30/2015 250.00132653 Gail MangurtenMANGURTENCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 250.0010 1110 300 02Accompaniest7/29/15


07/30/2015 268.95132654 Mathematics OlympiadsMATHOLYMPICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 159.9510 1120 410 00Math Supplies60098 16440


07/22/2015 109.0010 2330 640 00Dues and Fees60099 16441


07/30/2015 5,500.00132655 Northwest Evaluation AssociationNORTHWESTECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 5,500.0010 2230 400 07Assessment/Testing Material & SuppliesINV00034982


07/30/2015 1,513.54132656 Pearson EducationPEARSONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 1,265.2510 1100 400 05IDEA Program Supplies10299606 16412


07/20/2015 248.2910 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies4023984764 PO 16301


07/30/2015 1,135.41132657 Really Good StuffREALLYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/17/2015 118.4610 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies5162508 PO16341


07/17/2015 263.7710 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies5162529 PO16316


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 3


07/30/2015 5:51 PM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/17/2015 657.1610 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies5162531 PO16352


07/17/2015 42.1110 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies5162537 PO 16320


07/16/2015 53.9110 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies5162552 PO 16390


07/30/2015 5,740.00132658 Robbins,Schwartz,NicholasROBBINCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 5,740.0010 2310 318 00Board Legal Service262593


07/30/2015 186.00132659 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONSROSEPESTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/01/2015 93.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services1638680


07/20/2015 93.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services1650812


07/30/2015 3,559.91132660 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/18/2015 120.7410 2140 410 00General Supplies208114639288 PO 16638


07/18/2015 303.1010 2140 410 00General Supplies2081146449968 PO 16399


07/18/2015 149.7410 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114649233 PO 16319


07/18/2015 283.1110 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies208114649514


07/18/2015 202.9210 2140 410 00General Supplies208114649951 PO16355


07/18/2015 92.3710 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies208114649954


07/18/2015 397.9410 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies208114649955 PO16347


07/18/2015 337.1410 2140 410 00General Supplies208114649956 PO16364


07/18/2015 172.9510 2140 410 00General Supplies208114649957 PO 16407


07/18/2015 107.1210 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies208114649958 PO 16367


07/18/2015 605.1410 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies208114649959 PO16354


07/18/2015 130.0510 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208114649960 PO 16334


07/18/2015 657.5910 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208114649963 PO 16340


07/30/2015 962.33132661 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/18/2015 230.6610 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies208114649967


07/18/2015 217.8110 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies208114649970 PO 16332


07/18/2015 139.8110 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114649971 PO 16315


07/18/2015 57.7310 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208114649973


07/18/2015 316.3210 2140 410 00General Supplies208114650271 PO 16338


07/30/2015 4,875.81132662 School SpecialtyDELTACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/10/2015 4,875.8110 1110 410 10Science Supplies2020501217806 16307


07/30/2015 142.35132663 Staples Business AdvantageSTAPLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/18/2015 142.3510 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies8035251841 16385


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 4


07/30/2015 5:51 PM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/30/2015 140.00132664 Suburban Superintendents AssociationSSACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 140.0010 2321 640 00Admin Dues and Fees2015-2016


07/30/2015 207.00132665 Sur La TableSURLATABLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 207.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth07/29/15


07/30/2015 1,639.26132666 Joseph Sears SchoolREVOLVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 830.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth5365


07/24/2015 287.8810 2330 300 00Professional Growth5366


07/28/2015 281.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense5367


07/28/2015 166.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth5368


07/29/2015 74.3820 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies5369


07/30/2015 22.061849 Julie CampanaroCAMPANAR24Direct DepositCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 22.0610 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel7/28-7/29


07/30/2015 31.501850 Angela LascolaLASCOLADirect DepositCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 31.5010 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel7/29/15


70,696.071*Denotes Expensed Invoice Item Checking Account ID: Total without Voids:


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 5


07/30/2015 5:51 PM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







Summary Accounts Payable July 31st to August 17th 2015


10.  Educational Fund Accounts Payable $143,399.57


20. Operations & Maint Fund Accounts Payable $38,306.13


30.  Bond & Interest Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


40.  Transportation Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


50.  Municipal Retirement Fund $0.00


60. Site & Construction Accounts Payable $0.00


70.  Working Cash Fund Transfer of Interest $0.00


80. Tort Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


90.  Life Safety Fund Accounts Payable $0.00


Total A/P Disbursements $181,705.70


A/P Check Numbers 132667-132753
Direct A/P Deposit 0
Void Check Numbers


10. Educational Fund Payroll $253,085.81


20. Operations & Maint Fund Payroll $3,765.61


50.  Municipal Retirement Fund Payroll $2,734.71


Total Payroll Disbursements $259,586.13


Total Cash Disbursements $441,291.83


Submitted by: Trish Culhane
Approved by:


Date: August 12th 2015 _________________________________







1 1Checking Account:


08/17/2015 13,671.59132667 ABM Janitorial MidwestABMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 491.3120 2540 322 00ABM-Custodial Labor8267216


08/01/2015 6,123.2820 2540 322 00ABM-Custodial Labor8361840


08/01/2015 7,057.0020 2540 322 00ABM-Custodial Labor8361847


08/17/2015 1,064.00132668 ADVANCED DISPOSAL-NORTHBROOK-
T4


ADVDISPOSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 1,064.0020 2540 467 00Garbage DisposalT40001771126


08/17/2015 4,379.00132669 All CoveredALLCOVEREDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/05/2015 4,379.0010 2225 300 02All Covered682492


08/17/2015 5,336.00132670 Apple Computer IncAPPLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/17/2015 2,798.0010 196Teachers Computer Buy4346103554 lc5104


07/23/2015 239.0010 196Teachers Computer Buy4346633239 lc5105


07/30/2015 2,299.0010 196Teachers Computer Buy4347644999 lc5105


08/17/2015 786.22132671 AT&TATTCAROLSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 786.2220 2540 340 00Communication847256072107Jul


08/17/2015 23.37132672 AT&T GAATTGACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/27/2015 23.3720 2540 340 00CommunicationJuly 2015


08/17/2015 650.00132673 Benefit AdvantageBENEFITADVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 650.0010 2321 640 00Admin Dues and Fees391822


08/17/2015 1,395.00132674 Bureau of EducationBERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/05/2015 1,395.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth4612803 16397


08/17/2015 3,934.00132675 Cambium Learning, Inc.CAMBIUMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 3,934.0010 2225 300 03Tech Subscriptions1481906 LC5107


08/17/2015 1,095.00132676 Capstone Press, Inc.CAPSTONECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 1,095.0010 2225 300 03Tech SubscriptionsCI10457725 lc5106


08/17/2015 45.76132677 Carson Dellosa Publishing Company, LLCCARSONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 1


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/23/2015 29.8310 1120 410 00Math Supplies574567 16434


07/24/2015 15.9310 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies575404


08/17/2015 2,543.59132678 CDW Government, IncCDWCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/17/2015 562.3810 2410 410 00General SuppliesWt69751


07/20/2015 30.4410 2140 410 00General SuppliesWT92732


07/30/2015 1,950.7710 2225 400 00Tech Material & SuppliesXB69728 16464


08/17/2015 3,031.44132679 CENGAGE LEARNINGCENGAGECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/02/2015 3,031.4410 2225 300 03Tech Subscriptions55589064 LC5093


08/17/2015 263.07132680 CORNER BAKERYCORNERBAKECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/04/2015 79.3010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11003655320125


08/05/2015 94.6910 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11003735320125


08/10/2015 34.0810 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11004035330125


08/10/2015 55.0010 2560 490 00Lunch Expense11004055330125


08/17/2015 1,512.00132681 The DBQ CompanyDBQCOMPANYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/06/2015 1,512.0010 1110 410 09Reading Supplies2015-08-25 16475


08/17/2015 1,230.00132682 E.T. Paddock Enterprises IncPADDOCKCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/06/2015 1,230.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service07/15185 15884


08/17/2015 419.10132683 EPS/School Speciality InterventionEPSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 419.1010 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies10836966 16431


08/17/2015 156.22132684 Eric Armin IncEAICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 156.2210 1110 410 044th Grade SuppliesINV0731953 16324


08/17/2015 72.96132685 EVAN-MOOR Educational PublishersEVANMOORECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 72.9610 1110 410 022nd Grade SuppliesINV074656 16346


08/17/2015 220.00132686 Facing History and Ourselves, IncFACINGHISTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 110.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth5120 16461


08/07/2015 110.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth5130 16454


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 2


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


08/17/2015 395.44132687 Flinn Scientific IncFLINNCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/05/2015 395.4410 1120 410 09Science Supplies1886748 16482


08/17/2015 2,028.00132688 Folding Partition ServiceFOLDINCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 2,028.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service7906 15879


08/17/2015 772.35132689 Fredriksen Fire Equipment Co.FREDRIKSENCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/04/2015 772.3520 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service162071


08/17/2015 37.00132690 Debbie GeibGEIBDEBBIECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 37.0010 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel07/28/15


08/17/2015 1,662.09132691 Genesis TechnologiesGENESISCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 84.1010 2225 400 02Printer Ink/Toner517033


08/05/2015 1,577.9910 2225 400 00Tech Material & Supplies517550


08/17/2015 2,222.00132692 Genesis Technologies IncGENESISTECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 2,222.0010 2410 390 00Copier17289868


08/17/2015 2,087.22132693 W. W. GraingerGRAINGERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/17/2015 1,398.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9793475857


07/17/2015 (117.13)20 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9793475865


07/17/2015 117.1320 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9793647182


07/20/2015 1,050.5920 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9795550178


07/24/2015 85.3120 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9799316246


08/04/2015 311.4020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9808065180


08/04/2015 83.6320 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9808388863 16108


08/05/2015 (699.00)20 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9809427215


08/05/2015 (83.63)20 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9809427223


08/05/2015 (59.08)20 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies9809791917


08/17/2015 2,057.34132694 Handwriting Without Tears IncHANDWRITINCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/19/2015 570.5710 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies945546-1


07/19/2015 437.7510 1110 332 00Elementary Travel954543-1 16359


07/20/2015 629.7510 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies954843-1 16313


07/21/2015 419.2710 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies955593-1 16377


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 3


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


08/17/2015 20,843.91132695 Houghton MifflinHARCOURTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 1,400.1010 1110 410 00KDG Supplies951563706


07/21/2015 2,621.9010 1120 410 00Math Supplies951563707 16379


07/21/2015 4,568.4010 1120 410 00Math Supplies951563708 16312


07/21/2015 1,025.6110 1120 410 00Math Supplies951563709


07/21/2015 1,005.5010 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies951563710 16311


07/22/2015 1,007.2010 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies951568072


07/22/2015 1,057.2010 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies951568073


07/22/2015 765.6010 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies951568074 16325


07/21/2015 4,944.0010 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies951578006 16415


08/04/2015 1,391.2010 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies951610696 16372


08/04/2015 1,057.2010 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies951610697 16436


08/17/2015 6,251.72132696 IEC Nextera Energy ServicesIECNEXTERACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/23/2015 6,251.7220 2540 466 00Electricity07222015


08/17/2015 29.75132697 Illinois State PoliceILSTATCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/01/2015 29.7510 2310 316 00Board Background Checks7/1-7/31/15


08/17/2015 7,628.00132698 Instructure, Inc.INSTRUCTURCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 7,628.0010 2225 300 03Tech SubscriptionsINV7277


08/17/2015 430.00132699 KEENAN JENNIFERKEENANCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 230.0010 1311Tuition08/01/15


08/01/2015 200.0010 1614 002Organic Milk Sales08/01/15


08/17/2015 2,500.00132700 Julia JonesJONESJULIACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 2,500.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth08/01/15


08/17/2015 42,032.40132701 Kelley KalinichKALINICH24CheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 42,032.4010 2321 109 00Dr. KalinichVacation Compen


08/17/2015 172.92132702 Baiba KuntzKUNTZ24CheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 172.9210 1120 410 01Art Supplies08/01/15


08/17/2015 184.95132703 Lakeland/Larson ElevatorLAKELANDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 4


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


08/01/2015 184.9520 2544 310 00Care and Upkeep - Equip66571


08/17/2015 2,500.99132704 Lakeshore Learning MatLAKESHORECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 74.7310 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies3309970715 16321


07/22/2015 1,644.0310 1120 410 00Math Supplies3310000715


07/22/2015 482.9510 1120 410 00Math Supplies3310020715 16348


07/22/2015 156.2910 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies3310060715 16365


08/04/2015 142.9910 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies3664520815 16469


08/17/2015 91.26132705 Learning ResourcesLEARNRCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 91.2610 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies2260489 16366


08/17/2015 102.00132706 CRYSTAL LEROYLER0YCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 102.0010 2520 339 00Fiscal Services Travel07/29/15


08/17/2015 820.00132707 DALE LUKSHALUKSHACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 820.0010 2410 220 00Health Insurancee Board PortionAugust 2015


08/17/2015 500.64132708 MailFinanceMAILFINANCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 500.6410 2410 390 01Postage MeterN5441264


08/17/2015 38.85132709 Medi BadgeMEDIBADGECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 38.8510 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies675316


08/17/2015 96.76132710 Menards-Morton GroveMENARDSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 96.7620 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies97713


08/17/2015 35.00132711 Mid-Central PrintingMIDCENTRALCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 35.0010 2140 410 00General Supplies50023


08/17/2015 496.00132712 MIDWEST ARBOR CORP.MIDWARBORCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 496.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services3027554


08/17/2015 287.08132713 Northern Illinois GasNICORCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/04/2015 287.0820 2540 465 00Natural Gas08/04/15


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 5


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


08/17/2015 4,210.00132714 Olsson Roofing Company, Inc.OLSSONROOFCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 250.0020 2540 410 00Oper and Maint Supplies15002283


07/31/2015 3,960.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service15002461


08/17/2015 10.00132715 The Omni GroupOMNIGROUPCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 10.0010 2520 311 01403B Administrative Services1508-7911


08/17/2015 326.97132716 Orbotix, IncORBOTIXINCCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 326.9710 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies8796


08/17/2015 409.58132717 Oriental Trading Co.ORIENTALTRCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 127.3110 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies67261745-01 16331


07/20/2015 56.3510 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies672617514-01 16317


07/22/2015 77.4910 2140 410 00General Supplies672661117-01


07/22/2015 148.4310 2140 410 00General Supplies672661153-01


08/17/2015 58.69132718 PANHANDLE AREA EDUCATIONAL
CONSORTIUM


PAECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/01/2015 58.6910 1120 410 00Math Supplies06977 16405


08/17/2015 1,250.00132719 Pearson EducationPEARSONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 1,205.0010 2140 410 00General Supplies10313394 16412


08/04/2015 45.0010 2140 410 00General Supplies10315906 16412


08/17/2015 1,890.00132720 Pioneer Valley Educational PressPIONEERVALCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 1,890.0010 1110 410 00KDG Supplies00087271 16463


08/17/2015 394.74132721 Pro-EdPROEDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 394.7410 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies2321145 16409


08/17/2015 567.00132722 ProquestPROQUESTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


05/08/2015 567.0010 2223 470 00Computer Software70344309


08/17/2015 23.06132723 Moris QuijadaQUIJDACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 23.0610 1120 410 01Art Supplies07/30/15


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 6


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


08/17/2015 269.94132724 QUILL.COMQUILLCOMCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/29/2015 269.9410 2140 410 00General Supplies6327494 16457


08/17/2015 1,410.00132725 Quinlan & Fabish MusicQUINLANCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/04/2015 87.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381550


07/29/2015 132.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381551


08/05/2015 113.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381552


08/04/2015 82.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381557


08/04/2015 117.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381578


08/03/2015 91.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381581


08/03/2015 156.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381582


08/03/2015 118.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381586


08/04/2015 106.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381587


08/03/2015 82.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381591


07/31/2015 158.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381594


07/31/2015 168.0010 1120 410 02Music Supplies8381597


08/17/2015 1,000.00132726 Rainbow Farms Enterprises, IncRAINBOWFARCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/05/2015 1,000.0020 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service33028


08/17/2015 2,981.25132727 Really Good StuffREALLYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 41.1410 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies5165553


07/20/2015 41.1410 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies5165554 16389


07/20/2015 41.1410 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies5165555 16387


07/22/2015 1,355.6410 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies5173570 16391


07/22/2015 315.2110 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies5174949 16337


07/22/2015 116.6610 1120 410 05Soc Studies Supplies5175871 16435


07/24/2015 29.9810 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies5183216 16337


07/24/2015 403.9210 1110 410 00KDG Supplies5183221 16363


07/24/2015 294.8310 1120 410 00Math Supplies5184583 16451


07/24/2015 135.7210 1120 410 00Math Supplies5184588 16450


07/24/2015 94.9610 1120 410 00Math Supplies5184594 16449


07/24/2015 73.9410 1120 410 00Math Supplies5184601 16448


07/23/2015 36.9710 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies5184637 16428


08/17/2015 1,818.97132728 Really Good StuffREALLYCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/25/2015 209.7910 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies5185861 16393


07/16/2015 72.9610 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies5200955 16380


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 7


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/30/2015 93.3910 2140 410 00General Supplies5201127 16446


07/30/2015 79.6910 2140 410 00General Supplies5202036


08/04/2015 1,363.1410 1120 420 00Instructional Mtls5218788 16421


08/17/2015 184.58132729 Gail RodinRODIN24CheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


06/04/2015 184.5810 2560 490 00Lunch Expense06/04/15


08/17/2015 54.89132730 Sage PublicationsSAGEPUBLICCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 54.8910 2140 410 00General Supplies6951388 16361


08/17/2015 2,150.36132731 Scholastic IncSCHOLTEACHCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/23/2015 63.1210 1120 410 00Math Supplies11417975 16309


07/23/2015 289.7510 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies11417976 16353


07/27/2015 926.5010 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies11432793 16353


07/27/2015 20.2110 1110 410 09Reading Supplies11435704 16396


07/30/2015 32.1610 2140 410 00General Supplies11449011 16444


07/29/2015 98.8910 2140 410 00General SuppliesM5571318 4 15655


07/29/2015 181.5010 1120 410 00Math SuppliesM5660975 3 16300


07/29/2015 461.3410 1110 410 044th Grade SuppliesM5660988 6 16396


07/29/2015 76.8910 2140 410 00General SuppliesM5666151 5 18444


08/17/2015 2,183.58132732 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 169.0410 2140 410 00General Supplies16322


07/18/2015 231.3310 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies208114649210 16404


07/18/2015 227.2210 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies208114649964 16403


07/18/2015 33.5910 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208114649966 16400


07/18/2015 8.6510 2140 410 00General Supplies208114649969 16411


07/18/2015 204.9710 1110 410 011st Grade Supplies208114649972 16402


07/18/2015 61.1910 2140 410 00General Supplies208114650254 16401


07/18/2015 515.1210 2140 410 00General Supplies208114650278 16406


07/18/2015 227.5810 1110 410 10Science Supplies208114650570 16413


07/20/2015 158.3010 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies208114665849 16374


07/20/2015 257.4310 1125 410 00Pre K Teacher Supplies208114665857 16333


07/20/2015 33.3110 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies208114665962 16381


07/20/2015 55.8510 2140 410 00General Supplies208114665966 18329


08/17/2015 888.49132733 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/20/2015 42.7710 2140 410 00General Supplies208114665967 16407


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 8


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/20/2015 31.7110 1120 410 05Soc Studies Supplies208114665968 16358


07/20/2015 34.9510 2140 410 00General Supplies208114666306 16406


07/20/2015 27.7610 2140 410 00General Supplies208114666311 16401


07/20/2015 92.0810 2140 410 00General Supplies208114666330


07/20/2015 9.9310 2140 410 00General Supplies208114666428 16404


07/20/2015 9.9310 2140 410 00General Supplies208114666578 16376


07/20/2015 11.7010 2140 410 00General Supplies2081146666414 16315


07/20/2015 336.3310 1120 410 09Science Supplies208114666722


07/20/2015 9.9310 2140 410 00General Supplies208114667337 16403


07/22/2015 142.7610 2140 410 00General Supplies208114682227 16411


07/21/2015 44.5210 2140 410 00General Supplies208114684034 16333


07/23/2015 94.1210 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114709088 16430


08/17/2015 1,849.10132734 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/23/2015 326.0710 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114709529 16419


07/23/2015 424.0110 1120 410 05Soc Studies Supplies208114709818


07/23/2015 210.4310 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114709820 16427


07/23/2015 70.6910 1110 410 02General Supplies208114710651


07/24/2015 23.5410 1120 410 00Math Supplies208114717315 16443


07/24/2015 310.4210 1120 410 00Math Supplies208114718369 16442


07/24/2015 146.1810 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies208114719427 16432


07/25/2015 103.7310 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114735652 16427


07/25/2015 105.2810 1110 410 055th Grade Supplies208114737048 16443


07/25/2015 10.1210 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies208114737275 16432


07/27/2015 4.2210 2140 410 00General Supplies208114744097 16443


07/27/2015 5.9510 2140 410 00General Supplies208114745173 16427


07/28/2015 108.4610 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies208114758821 16327


08/17/2015 117.24132735 School SpecialitySCHOOLSPECCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/30/2015 11.8510 2140 410 00General Supplies208114795641 16367


08/03/2015 9.9810 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies208114831198 16381


08/05/2015 95.4110 2140 410 00General Supplies208114861355 16484


08/17/2015 4,423.85132736 School SpecialtyDELTACheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/23/2015 1,028.0510 1110 410 10Science Supplies202501223157


08/01/2015 521.9210 1110 410 09Reading Supplies202501227377


07/27/2015 2,622.2410 1110 410 10Science Supplies20501224849


08/01/2015 251.6410 1110 410 10Science Supplies249711 16308


08/17/2015 79.92132737 SCHOOL SUPPLY STORESCHOOLSUPPCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 9


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/28/2015 79.9210 2410 410 00General Supplies117657 16465


08/17/2015 216.77132738 School-Pak, IncSCHOOLPAK1CheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 216.7710 2140 410 00General Supplies141434 16445


08/17/2015 280.89132739 Signs NowSIGNSNOWCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/05/2015 280.8910 2310 400 01Board Teacher Recognition508019 20166


08/17/2015 99.92132740 Solution TreeSOLUTIONCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/04/2015 99.9210 2220 410 00Library General Supplies843498


08/17/2015 511.22132741 SPRINTSPRINTCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/07/2015 511.2220 2540 340 00Communication190445514-036


08/17/2015 297.33132742 Staples Business AdvantageSTAPLECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/18/2015 58.1310 2140 410 00General Supplies3272206625 16378


07/25/2015 215.2210 2140 410 00General Supplies8035337860 16433


08/01/2015 23.9810 2140 410 00General Supplies8035445719


08/17/2015 371.43132743 Super Duper PublicationsSUPERCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/17/2015 371.4310 1120 410 04Lang Art Supplies2085268A 16410


08/17/2015 882.00132744 TCI Teacher Curriculm InstTCICheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/21/2015 378.0010 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies#INV13501


07/22/2015 504.0010 1120 410 05Soc Studies Supplies#INV13549 16375


08/17/2015 602.10132745 Time for KidsTIMEKIDSCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/23/2015 267.6010 1110 410 044th Grade Supplies1077119400/2015


07/24/2015 334.5010 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies1776562553/2015 16422


08/17/2015 524.33132746 Trend Enterprises IncTRENDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 371.0110 1110 410 022nd Grade Supplies1932891 RI 16382


07/24/2015 153.3210 1110 410 033rd Grade Supplies1934030 RI 16416


08/17/2015 168.00132747 Trugreen ChemlawnTRUGREENCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 10


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC







1 1Checking Account:


07/26/2015 168.0020 2540 329 00Grounds Services35508995


08/17/2015 450.00132748 Tumbleweed Press IncTUMBLEWEEDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/01/2015 450.0010 2225 300 03Tech Subscriptions66934


08/17/2015 6,706.25132749 Tyler Technologies, IncTYLERTECHNCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/31/2015 6,706.2510 2223 470 00Computer Software025-131388


08/17/2015 81.36132750 Vanguard Energy Services LLCVANGUARDCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/06/2015 81.3620 2540 465 00Natural Gas400-1507-2030


08/17/2015 2,633.13132751 Village of KenilworthVILLAGECheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/05/2015 2,309.6320 2540 460 00Water and Sewer3/28-7/16


08/05/2015 173.5020 2540 460 00Water and Sewer3/28-7/17


08/05/2015 150.0020 2540 460 00Water and Sewer437


08/17/2015 723.16132752 Waukegan Gurnee Glass IncWAUKEGANGUCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


07/22/2015 723.1620 2540 323 00Repair and Maint Service1034077 15883


08/17/2015 473.61132753 Joseph Sears SchoolREVOLVCheckCheck Number: Vendor:Check Type: Check Total:Check Date:


Chart of Account NumberInvoice Number Detail AmountDetail DescriptionPO NumberInvoice Date


08/03/2015 207.0010 2330 300 00Professional Growth5370


08/05/2015 266.6110 2410 331 00Office of Principal Travel5372


181,705.701*Denotes Expensed Invoice Item Checking Account ID: Total without Voids:


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Page: 11


08/12/2015 10:41 AM


Detail Check Register


User ID: TC





		Summary Accounts Payables July 16th to July 30th 2015

		SummaryAccountsPayableforJuly16thtoJuly30th2015

		1

		Check

		132625

		132626

		132627

		132628

		132629

		132630

		132631

		132632

		132633

		132634

		132635

		132636

		132637

		132638

		132639

		132640

		132641

		132642

		132643

		132644

		132645

		132646

		132647

		132648

		132649

		132650

		132651

		132652

		132653

		132654

		132655

		132656

		132657

		132658

		132659

		132660

		132661

		132662

		132663

		132664

		132665

		132666



		Direct Deposit

		1849

		1850







		Summary Accounts Payables July31st to August 17th 2015

		SummaryAccountsPayableJuly31sttoAugust17th2015

		1

		Check

		132667

		132668

		132669

		132670

		132671

		132672

		132673

		132674

		132675

		132676

		132677

		132678

		132679

		132680

		132681

		132682

		132683

		132684

		132685

		132686

		132687

		132688

		132689

		132690

		132691

		132692

		132693

		132694

		132695

		132696

		132697

		132698

		132699

		132700

		132701

		132702

		132703

		132704

		132705

		132706

		132707

		132708

		132709

		132710

		132711

		132712

		132713

		132714

		132715

		132716

		132717

		132718

		132719

		132720

		132721

		132722

		132723

		132724

		132725

		132726

		132727

		132728

		132729

		132730

		132731

		132732

		132733

		132734

		132735

		132736

		132737

		132738

		132739

		132740

		132741

		132742

		132743

		132744

		132745

		132746

		132747

		132748

		132749

		132750

		132751

		132752

		132753












 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 
To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
Date: August 17, 2015 
 
Re: Business Office and Human Resources Update 
 
 
 
Accounts Payable Review 
 
The following section will highlight any bills that are beyond the regular monthly bills list or 
require an explanation: 
 
 
Explanation: Annual Maintenance for Employee Absence/Substitution Software 


 
 
 
Explanation: Landscaping Services – Summer Maintenance  


 
 
 
Explanation: Board Legal Services – Includes Billing from Prior Month  


 
 
 
Explanation: Third Party Administrator for Flexible Spending Account – Deposit 


 
 
Explanation: Post Retirement Benefit for Former Superintendent – Unused Vacation Compensation 


 
 
 
Explanation: New Financial Software Company – Data Conversion  


 
 
 
 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 
 
 
Monthly Financial Report 
You may notice the format has slightly changed.  The first page, which is a summary of revenue 
and expenditures by fund, now includes a current year-to-date fund balance.  The second page of 
the Monthly Financials will continue to include an estimated year-end fund balance as of June 30, 
2016. 
 
Accounts Payable Analysis 
This is just a reminder to the Board that the Accounts Payable Analysis was intended to be a short 
term reporting tool to analyze the District’s primary spending areas.  The District now has a full 
year’s worth of data to use for comparison purposes. As discussed earlier, under the capability of 
our current financial software system, this is a manual report that is very labor intensive.  Going 
forward, our new financial system can produce these reports quite readily.  If the Board would 
like to continue reviewing this information, it is my recommendation that the Board receive these 
reports on quarterly basis. 
 
 
In order to abide by Truth in Taxation Statues and adhere to a reasonable budget calendar, it is 
necessary for the Board of Education to consider the adoption of a tentative budget at this time. 
These laws require the Board of Education to approve a tentative budget for public display at least 
30 days prior to adopting a final budget and also require a public budget hearing to be held prior 
to final adoption. Adopting the tentative budget this evening will allow ample time to display the 
budget and announce a September public hearing, as more than thirty days separate the regular 
August and September board meetings. The following outlines the FY16 Budget Calendar: 
 
Budget Meeting Dates: Topics of Discussion 
  
August 18, 2015 Review and Approval of Tentative FY16 Budget 


Publish Notice of Budget for Public 
Display and Announcement of Public Hearing 


 
September 21, 2015 Public Hearing for FY16 Budget 
 Approval of FY16 Budget 
 
 
September 30, 2015 Filing Deadline for FY16 Budget 
 
November 16, 2015 Estimate of 2015 Levy 
 Approval of 2015 Levy Public Hearing 


Announcement 
 
December 14, 2015 Presentation of FY15 Audit 
 Acceptance of FY15 Audit 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 Public Hearing for 2015 Levy 
 Approval of 2015 Levy 
 Five-Year Financial Projections  
 
December 30, 2015 Last Day to File 2015 Levy 
 


 


Budget Review 
Please note this is the first presentation of the FY16 Tentative Budget.  The Building and Finance 
Committee has not had the opportunity to review this budget prior to the August 17th Board 
Meeting.  The Board will have ample time for discussion and questions regarding the FY16 
Tentative Budget.  Additionally, the tentative budget will be on display for 30 days until the 
September Board Meeting. During this time, adjustments can be made as more information 
becomes available. 
 
The budgeted revenues are $13,418,760 and budgeted expenditures are $16,035,994.  This 
reflects an overall budget deficit of $2,617,234.  This deficit is largely due to the FY16 
anticipated construction expenditures. The Building and Finance Committee is still working on 
the details of the Master Facilities Plan. However, based on preliminary discussions of facility 
priorities, I have allocated $3,300,000 for FY16 projects. Less the estimated construction costs, 
the District is projected to have a nearly balanced budget.  
 
The following table chart details the FY16 Tentative Budget revenues and expenditures: 
 
 FY16 Tentative Budget – Revenues and Expenditures 
 


% of Total Revenues
Local 13,074,260 96.90%
State 239,500 2.40%
Federal 105,000 0.70%


Total Revenues $13,418,760 100.00%


% of Total Expenditures
Salaries 7,515,233 58.60%
Employee Benefits 1,463,060 11.20%
Purchased Services 1,937,127 9.60%
Supplies & Materials 642,864 5.20%
Capital Outlay 3,434,544 5.80%
Other Objects 1,043,166 9.60%
Non-Capitalized Equipment 0 0.00%
Termination Benefits 0 0.00%


Total Expenditures $16,035,994 100.00%


Revenues - All Funds by Source


Expenditures - All Funds by Object


 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 
 
The FY16 budgeted revenues reflect an increase of 1.6%, while less the construction costs, the 
budgeted expenditures reflect a higher increase of 4.62%. Although the property tax revenue 
increases at a rate equivalent to the Consumer Price Index and New Growth, the state and federal 
revenue are expected to remain flat.  Therefore, increases in expenditures continue to outpace the 
annual revenue growth. The following table presents the FY15 Unaudited Actuals in comparison 
to the FY16 Tentative Budget: 
 
 
 
 


 


 2014-2015       
Unaudited Actuals  


 2015-2016 
Tentative Budget  


% 
Increase 


Revenues by Source 
 


  
 Tax Levy  $11,943,341.48   $12,178,918.00  1.97% 


Other Local Revenue  $933,382.04   $895,342.00  -4.08% 
State Revenue  $238,193.20   $239,500.00  0.55% 
Federal Revenue  $92,112.01   $105,000.00  13.99% 
Other Financial Sources         


 Total revenues - All Funds  $13,207,028.73   $13,418,760.00  1.60% 


    


 


 2014-2015       
Unaudited Actuals  


 2015-2016 
Tentative Budget  


% 
Increase 


Expenditures by Object 
 


  
 Salaries  $7,288,548.00   $7,515,233.00  3.11% 


Benefits   $1,400,474.03   $1,463,060.00  4.47% 
Purchased Services  $1,200,763.90   $1,937,127.00  61.32% 
Supplies  $642,083.79   $642,864.00  0.12% 
Capital Outlay  $414,273.23   $3,434,544.00  729.05% 
Other Expenses  $1,227,549.05   $1,043,166.00  -15.02% 
*Total Expenditures - All Funds  $12,173,692.00   $16,035,994.00  4.62% 


 
*The expenditure increase of 4.62% excludes $3,300,000 estimated for construction costs 
 
Summary 
 
Although, the tentative budget expenditures are expected to exceed revenues by $2.6M, this still 
reflects a healthy estimated ending balance of $13,960,559, well within the Board of Education 
minimum fund balance guidelines. 
 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


All Funds Budget     
Beginning Balance 7/1/15  $16,577,793 
 Revenues $13,418,760    Expenditures $16,035,994   
Ending Balance 6/30/16   $13,960,559 


 
The administration believes this Tentative Budget is a sound representation of the financial 
position of the district. Adjustments throughout the various funds will continue to be made prior 
to the September budget hearing. Revisions to the tentative budget will be incorporated as 
additional information becomes available. 
 
 
 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 
 








DRAFT 
Director of Student Services Goals 


for the 2015-2016 School Year 
 
 
Curriculum 
 


1. By October 31, 2015, provide a written evaluation of the Gifted Program including the 
process for student identification, development and monitoring of implementation plan, 
as well as evaluation of student success. By December 31, 2015, in collaboration with the 
Gifted Committee, develop a comprehensive program to meet the needs of students, 
which will include specific recommendations for personnel assignments, standards, 
tasks and appropriate professional development. By January 2016, implement the 
renewed program for direct services to students. 


 
 


2. By September 30, 2015 identify curriculum to meet the state Erin’s Law requirement and 
provide an implementation plan.  By October 31, 2015, identify a Social Emotional 
Learning evaluation tool for students and provide an implementation plan to the 
Superintendent and Board of Education.  Regular reports will also be provided to the 
Superintendent and Board of Education regarding bullying prevention and the Social 
Emotional Learning curriculum.   


 
3. Throughout the school year, ensure that services to students with Individual Education 


Plans (IEP), 504 Plans are designed and delivered in a manner that promotes the student 
growth and success as a part of The Joseph Sears School student body. 
*I think that this is ok, and evidence will be provided through my other goals 
 


1. By October 30, 2015, develop a professional development plan for the front office staff 
and submit the plan to the Superintendent.  The plan should include an assessment of 
the front office procedures, standards and measures of front office roles and 
responsibilities including goal setting meeting with each of the front office staff.  The 
plan should conclude with a detailed professional development plan for each front office 
staff member. By the December Board meeting, a written update of the front office staff 
with a final recommendation for responsibilities or personnel changes to the Board of 
Education. 


 
 
 
Communication 
  


 
4. Starting in August 2015 and continuing throughout the 2015-2016 school year, examine, 


implement and evaluate meaningful ways to communicate the work of the Student 
Services Department and other areas for which the Director of Student Services has 
significant responsibility. These areas include Social Emotional Learning, Response to 
Intervention and Gifted/Enrichment education. The information should be presented in 
such a way as to ensure that faculty and parents are knowledgeable about what the 







DRAFT 
District offers in each area.  Discuss ideas with the Superintendent on ways to promote 
such communications.   
*I think this is ok with taking out Discipline and Ethics Committee 
 


5. By the December Board meeting, provide a progress report to the Board of Education 
outlining the Student Services budget, staffing, services and professional development. 
The report will include a historical comparison to the previous three years.  By the June 
Board meeting, provide a year-end report for FY16.  
 


6. Present annual calendar of activities and deadlines related to the Director of Student 
Services position at an Education Committee meeting during or before the month of 
September.  Update and revise the calendar, as needed.  Continue to develop internal 
Student Services Department website to outline procedures and house necessary forms.  
Periodically review the website with the Superintendent. 
 


7. By January 1, 2016, examine and develop executive functioning strategies to assist with 
pacing of tasks, timeliness of responses to communication and consideration of priorities 
as guided by the Strategic Plan. These strategies should ensure designated deadlines are 
met with minimal follow up required. 


 
Culture 
 


8. By November 1, 2015, develop a plan to enhance the relationships with faculty, staff and 
parents addressing Domain IV of the Performance Standards for School Leaders and the 
Four Cornerstone Behaviors to the Superintendent. At the December and March Board 
meeting, provide a written report of the plan and provide updates and evidence of 
monitoring Board of Education.  
 


9. As an extension of Domain IV and goal #8, develop specific strategies across faculty, 
students, and parents to foster a culture of teamwork, trust, collaboration and 
instructional/academic excellence.  This will be measured via periodic faculty surveys 
and the annual parent and faculty surveys taken at the end of the school year. 
 


 
 Administrative Restructure 
 


10. By November 1, 2015, develop a plan in conjunction with the Superintendent and 
Principal to review, assess and adjust the roles and responsibilities of each administrator 
as outlined for the 2015-2016 school year. By January 1, 2016, provide a written 
assessment of the roles and responsibilities of each administrator for the 2015-2016 
school year to the Board of Education. The Director of Student Services’ assessment 
should include the impact of the new administrative structure on the faculty and staff, 
administrative leadership team, community and the overall impact on student 
performance. 








 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


To:   Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 


From:  Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services  
 
Date:   August 17, 2015 
 
RE:   Director of Student Services’ Report 
 
 
 
Deerfield Public School District 109 Intent to Withdraw from NSSED 
 
Deerfield Public School District 109 (District 109) held two informational meetings regarding 
their intent to withdraw from NSSED on Thursday, July 23rd and Monday, July 27th.  
 
District 109 asked the 17 other districts that comprise NSSED to vote “yes” on a special 
resolution that would allow them to consensually withdraw from NSSED. Deerfield District 109 
states, “A ‘yes’ vote indicates recognition that District 109 intends to and is able to continue to 
meet the needs of special education students without being in the NSSED cooperative.” The 17 
districts have been asked by District 109 to take a vote on this by October 2015. Dr. Tim Thomas, 
NSSED Superintendent has indicated, District 109 has suggested this timeline so they have an 
understanding of whether the withdrawal will be consensual or non-consensual and assist them 
with their next steps. The Illinois State Board of Education or NSSED has not prescribed this 
timeline.  
 
A summary of the programs and services that we currently utilize, or have used in recent years, 
through the Northern Suburban Special Education District (NSSED) are listed below. The 
professional development sessions attended by Sears Faculty during the 2014-15 school year are 
also listed. 
 
Programs 


• Early Childhood Program 
• Educational and Life Skills Program 
• North Shore Academy-Elementary/North Shore Academy 


 
Services 


• Physical Therapist 
• Occupational Therapist 
• NSSEO Deaf and Hard of Hearing (D/HH) Itinerant Services 
• School Psychologist 
• District Services Coaches 
• Adapted Physical Education  
• Assistive Technology 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 
Professional Development 2014-15       


• Nonviolent Crisis Intervention Training 
• Safe and Civil Schools Foundations Cohort 
• Legal Updates 
• Anita Archer (August 2015) 
• Alexian Brothers: Supporting Students with High-Risk Needs 
• Professional Network Meetings 


o Speech-Language Pathologist 
o Social Work 
o School Psychologist 
o Special Education Teacher 


 
2015-16 Kenilworth District 38 Staffing 


• Early Childhood Intervention Specialist – 1 
• Student Services (Special Education) Teachers – 5 
• Speech and Language Pathologist – 1 
• School Social Worker – 1.6 
• School Psychologist – 1  
• Instructional Assistants (Special Education) – 7 


 
Gifted Education Update 
 
This summer, I worked with Mrs. Liz Gordon, Junior High Response to Intervention/Gifted 
Coordinator, and Ms. Caitlin Phillips, School Psychologist, to create a matrix with formulas that 
allowed us to normalize the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) RIT scores and Cognitive 
Abilities Test (CogAT) Standard Scores for comparison and ranking. We were also able to 
calculate mean scores, standard deviation, percentile ranks, and normal curve equivalents (NCE) 
from local normative data.  
 
Based on this data, I was able to identify the top 5% of students, or students at or above the 91st 
NCE, in ELA and Math. We still need to take this data back to the Building Leadership Team for 
review. We are also recommending the use of the Scales for Rating the Behavioral Characteristics 
of Superior Students (Renzulli Scales) as an additional data point, which need to be reviewed by 
the committee as a whole.  
 
I have begun reaching out to the parents of the students identified from this matrix to let them 
know where we are in the process of gifted renewal and to assure them that their child’s abilities 
will be communicated to their classroom teacher. Mrs. Gordon will be meeting with third through 
eighth grade teams during the first month of school to assist them with adapting curriculum to 
meet the needs of advanced learners. Mrs. Gordon and I are also developing a professional 
development proposal that highlights characteristics of gifted students. 
 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


While very few students are identified as “gifted” from the matrix, we have many high 
readiness/academically advanced learners that need to be challenged. This past year, we offered 
content acceleration in the area of math for groups of elementary students. Typically, these 
opportunities have been available for seventh and eighth grade students who qualified for New 
Trier math. We will continue to review data and student need to plan classes accordingly. The 
previously mentioned professional development plan will also include differentiation strategies to 
meet the needs of students on all ends of the learning spectrum.  
 
 
 








 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
Date: August 17, 2015 
 
RE: Freedom of Information Act Requests 
 
 
 
The following Freedom of Information Act Request has been received and responded to since the 
last regular Board of Education meeting: 
 
 
From Ms. Alison Winslow 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Alison Winslow: 
 


1. Review of Historical Operational Spending – Dr. Crystal LeRoy presented the committee 
with a memo aligning the district’s operational spending to enrollment from 2009 to 2013. 
The data showed operational expenses have steadily increased over the years while 
enrollment has declined. Dr. LeRoy told the committee that operational expenses have 
increased at a similar rate as other schools in the district. Mr. Greg Werd said he is 
concerned about the trend. Dr. LeRoy said capital expenses going forward will play a part 
in determining how the trend will look. Committee members added personnel costs – 
which make up more than 70 percent of the district’s budget – are more of a factor in the 
expenses trend. Dr. LeRoy will report the operational spending analysis to the board 
during their April 20 meeting.  


 
The response was provided on July 16, 2015. There were no legal fees incurred. It required time 
on the part of myself to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 
From Ms. Alison Winslow 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Alison Winslow: 
 


1. Enrollment projections for 2015/2016 and beyond. 
 


The response was provided on July 17, 2015. There were no legal fees incurred. It required time 
on the part of myself to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 
From Ms. Alison Winslow 
 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Alison Winslow: 
 
 
 


1. Current projected fall enrollment for 2015/2016. 
2. Estimated expenditures per student excluding construction costs. 


 
The response was provided on July 22, 2015. There were no legal fees incurred. It required time 
on the part of myself to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 
From Ms. Alison Winslow 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Alison Winslow: 
 


1. Copy of the census that the JSSPVA updates for the school every year. 
 
The response was provided on August 7, 2015. There were no legal fees incurred. It required time 
on the part of myself to research all appropriate documents requested.   
 
 
From Ms. Alison Winslow 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of Ms. Alison Winslow: 
 


1. Operating expenses for Sears from the 2001/2002 school year through 2015/2016.  
Preliminary operating expenses are fine for 2015/2016 if the final expenses have not been 
approved.  


2. Are there any other measures such as FTE’s readily available? Even going back to 
2007/2008 would be helpful. 


 
The initial response was provided on August 7, 2015. A follow up response was provided on 
August 13, 2015.  It required time on the part of myself to research all appropriate documents 
requested.  The response was developed in consultation with our legal counsel, Heidi Katz.  The 
cost for the legal fees related to this response will be posted in this memorandum when received. 
 
 
 








 


 
 
Dear Sears Community, 
 
As part of our ongoing pursuit of excellence and continuous improvement, the Kenilworth School 
District No. 38 Board of Education annually solicits community feedback in the form of a faculty/staff 
survey.  We collected 51 responses from the 101 faculty/staff present during the 2014-2015 school year. 
The information we collected is a highly valued tool we use to monitor feedback with regard to our 
school’s educational performance, culture, communication, finances and facilities. 
 
We used the percentage of affirmative responses (strongly agree, agree, excellent and good) to calculate 
general satisfaction with regard to a specific question. Below are the District’s top four areas of 
satisfaction based on faculty/staff feedback: 
 


• 100% of surveyed faculty/staff feel the school frequently or often sets high standards for 
academic performance. 


• About 98% of surveyed faculty/staff feel teachers go the extra mile for their students. 
• About 95% of surveyed faculty/staff feel teachers either frequently or often support each other. 
• About 95% of surveyed faculty/staff feel teachers either frequently or often accomplish their jobs 


with enthusiasm. 
 
In addition, surveyed faculty/staff indicated passionate teachers, collaboration amongst colleagues and 
the Sears parent community are all district strengths. 
 
While the survey indicated satisfaction, faculty/staff identified the following as areas in need of 
improvement: 
 


• Only 48% of surveyed faculty/staff feel satisfied with the timely response by administrators to 
concerns. 


• Only 45% of surveyed faculty/staff feel satisfied with student discipline policies. 
• Only 39% of surveyed faculty/staff feel satisfied with administrative transparency of 


deliberations and decision-making. 
• Only 31% of surveyed faculty/staff feel satisfied with individual gifted plans for students. 


 
In addition, faculty/staff indicated that the school dress code, consistent disciplinary practices and the 
need for consistent curriculum across grade levels could be improved. 
 
We would like to thank all of our faculty/staff for taking the time to respond to our survey.  Your 
feedback is extremely important as we continue improving our school and our performance.  We are 
committed to making Sears the best school for the children of Kenilworth. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 







88.24% 45


11.76% 6


Q1 In general, do you feel Sears students
are sufficiently challenged?


Answered: 51 Skipped: 0


Total 51


Yes


No


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Yes


No


1 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







43.14% 22


56.86% 29


Q2 Is there any feedback you have
regarding specific strengths or areas of


concern with the curriculum?
Answered: 51 Skipped: 0


Total 51


Yes


No


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Yes


No


2 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







66.67% 34


29.41% 15


3.92% 2


Q3 Were the professional development
experiences offered this school year


meaningful and impactful to your role?
Answered: 51 Skipped: 0


Total 51


Yes


No


Not Applicable


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Yes


No


Not Applicable


3 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







66.67% 34


19.61% 10


13.73% 7


Q4 When considering your specific
curricular areas for which you are


responsible, do you have the administrative
and pedagogical support to differentiate the


curriculum to challenge the learners who
have mastered the core curriculum?


Answered: 51 Skipped: 0


Total 51


Yes


No


Not Applicable


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Yes


No


Not Applicable


4 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q5 Please indicate how satisfied you are
with the following existing special


programs.
Answered: 51 Skipped: 0


a.
After-school...


b. English as
a Second...


c. Response to
Intervention...


5 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







d. Individual
Gifted Plans


e.
Interscholas...


f. Library
Services


g. Technology
6 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







g. Technology
Services...


h. Technology
Access...


i. Student
Services (Gr...


j. Student
Services...


7 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







50.98%
26


17.65%
9


7.84%
4


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


23.53%
12


 
51


17.65%
9


19.61%
10


9.80%
5


1.96%
1


5.88%
3


45.10%
23


 
51


39.22%
20


33.33%
17


11.76%
6


1.96%
1


1.96%
1


11.76%
6


 
51


15.69%
8


15.69%
8


15.69%
8


11.76%
6


11.76%
6


29.41%
15


 
51


41.18%
21


19.61%
10


1.96%
1


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


37.25%
19


 
51


80.39%
41


7.84%
4


1.96%
1


1.96%
1


0.00%
0


7.84%
4


 
51


66.67%
34


21.57%
11


3.92%
2


3.92%
2


0.00%
0


3.92%
2


 
51


68.63%
35


13.73%
7


7.84%
4


5.88%
3


0.00%
0


3.92%
2


 
51


62.75%
32


19.61%
10


9.80%
5


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


7.84%
4


 
51


74.51%
38


9.80%
5


5.88%
3


0.00%
0


5.88%
3


3.92%
2


 
51


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure
or No
Answer


Total


a. After-school, or Lunch time programs (e.g. Art Club, Chess
Club, Great Books, Science Olympiad)


b. English as a Second Language (ELL)


c. Response to Intervention (Enrichment)


d. Individual Gifted Plans


e. Interscholastic Athletics (5-8)


f. Library Services


g. Technology Services (Educational support)


h. Technology Access (Available hardware and software)


i. Student Services (Grade Level Support)


j. Student Services (Nursing, Psychological,Social Work, Speech
and Language Support)


8 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q6 Are there any services or programs that
should be added?


Answered: 12 Skipped: 39


9 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q7 Adequate facilities and space for
learning.


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


36.36%
16


36.36%
16


13.64%
6


9.09%
4


2.27%
1


2.27%
1


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Adequate
facilities a...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Adequate facilities and space for
learning.


10 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q8 Building and campus cleanliness
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


56.82%
25


36.36%
16


4.55%
2


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Building and
campus...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Building and campus cleanliness


11 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q9 Communications within your grade
level, department, or work group


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


47.73%
21


25.00%
11


18.18%
8


2.27%
1


2.27%
1


4.55%
2


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Communications
within your...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Communications within your grade level, department,
or work group


12 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q10 Communications within the school
including newsletters and emails


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


27.27%
12


29.55%
13


27.27%
12


13.64%
6


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Communications
within the...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Communications within the school including
newsletters and emails


13 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q11 Communications with parents
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


34.09%
15


40.91%
18


18.18%
8


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


4.55%
2


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Communications
with parents


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Communications with parents


14 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q12 September Curriculum Nights
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


34.09%
15


36.36%
16


13.64%
6


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


13.64%
6


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


September
Curriculum...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


September Curriculum Nights


15 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q13 Structure of Parent/Teacher
Conferences


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


34.09%
15


31.82%
14


25.00%
11


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


6.82%
3


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Structure of
Parent/Teach...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Structure of Parent/Teacher
Conferences


16 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q14 Level of participation by parents in
Parent/Teacher Conferences


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


47.73%
21


36.36%
16


9.09%
4


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


6.82%
3


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Level of
participatio...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Level of participation by parents in Parent/Teacher
Conferences


17 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q15 School building security
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


63.64%
28


25.00%
11


9.09%
4


0.00%
0


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


School
building...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


School building security


18 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q16 Student discipline policies
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


6.82%
3


38.64%
17


29.55%
13


11.36%
5


11.36%
5


2.27%
1


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Student
discipline...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Student discipline policies


19 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q17 Timely response by administrators to
concerns


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


18.18%
8


29.55%
13


22.73%
10


11.36%
5


18.18%
8


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Timely
response by...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Timely response by administrators to
concerns


20 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q18 New format of Parent Visitation Day
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


59.09%
26


22.73%
10


6.82%
3


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


11.36%
5


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


New format of
Parent...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


New format of Parent Visitation Day


21 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q19 Ease of navigation of District, School
and Board of Education Website


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


34.09%
15


43.18%
19


15.91%
7


4.55%
2


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Ease of
navigation o...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No
Answer


Total


Ease of navigation of District, School and Board of
Education Website


22 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q20 Curriculum Renewal Process
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


9.09%
4


15.91%
7


22.73%
10


18.18%
8


6.82%
3


27.27%
12


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Curriculum
Renewal Process


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Curriculum Renewal Process


23 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q21 Master/Bell Schedule renewal process
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


13.64%
6


34.09%
15


15.91%
7


11.36%
5


11.36%
5


13.64%
6


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Master/Bell
Schedule...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very
Satisfied)


4 3 2 1 (Very
Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer Total


Master/Bell Schedule renewal
process


24 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







36.36% 16


22.73% 10


40.91% 18


Q22 This year the Board of Education
implemented year 2 of its Strategic Plan.


Are you satisfied with the progress that has
been made in the four goal areas:


Curriculum, Communication, Culture and
Finance/Facilities?


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


Yes


No


Unsure


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Yes


No


Unsure


25 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q23 Community
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


27.27%
12


50.00%
22


11.36%
5


4.55%
2


4.55%
2


2.27%
1


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Community


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Community


26 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q24 Board of Education
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


27.27%
12


38.64%
17


6.82%
3


9.09%
4


11.36%
5


6.82%
3


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Boarrd of
Education


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Boarrd of Education


27 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q25 Faculty
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


54.55%
24


31.82%
14


11.36%
5


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Faculty


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Faculty


28 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q26 Staff (non-certified Personnel)
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


61.36%
27


29.55%
13


6.82%
3


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Staff
(non-certifi...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Staff (non-certified Personnel)


29 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q27 Administration
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


34.09%
15


27.27%
12


11.36%
5


9.09%
4


18.18%
8


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Administration


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Administration


30 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q28 Students
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


54.55%
24


36.36%
16


6.82%
3


0.00%
0


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Students


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Students


31 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q29 Parents
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


36.36%
16


56.82%
25


4.55%
2


2.27%
1


0.00%
0


0.00%
0


 
44


5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied)


Unsure or No Answer


Parents


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 5 (Very Satisfied) 4 3 2 1 (Very Dissatisfied) Unsure or No Answer Total


Parents


32 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







15.91% 7


29.55% 13


22.73% 10


11.36% 5


18.18% 8


2.27% 1


Q30 The Board of Education envisions a
culture whereby there is transparency in


decision-making after careful consideration
of alternatives. Please indicate your
satisfaction with the transparency of
deliberations and decision-making.


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


5 Very
Satisfied


4


3


2


1 Very
Dissatisfied


Unsure or No
Answer


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


5 Very Satisfied


4


3


2


1 Very Dissatisfied


Unsure or No Answer


33 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







9.09% 4


29.55% 13


18.18% 8


20.45% 9


22.73% 10


0.00% 0


Q31 Please indicate your satisfaction with
the Administrative transparency of
deliberations and decision-making.


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


5 Very
Satisfied


4


3


2


1 Very
Dissatisfied


Unsure or No
Answer


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


5 Very Satisfied


4


3


2


1 Very Dissatisfied


Unsure or No Answer


34 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







27.27% 12


61.36% 27


11.36% 5


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


Q32 With the high level of engagement of
The Joseph Sears School parents, to what


extent are you satisfied with your
interactions with parents?


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


5 Very
Satisfied


4


3


2


1 Very
Dissatisfied


Unsure or No
Answer


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


5 Very Satisfied


4


3


2


1 Very Dissatisfied


Unsure or No Answer


35 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q33 The Board of Education and
Administration have identified a new


administrative structure for the 2015-2016
school year. What suggestions do you have


to monitor the effectiveness of the
structure?


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


36 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q34 The Administration and Faculty have
identified a new Master/Bell Schedule for


the 2015-2016 school year. What
suggestions do you have to monitor the


effectiveness of the new Master/Bell
Schedule?


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


37 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q35 What do you consider to be particular
strengths of The Joseph Sears School?


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


38 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q36 What areas should the District focus
on for improvement, or what new programs,
if any, would you like to see implemented?


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


39 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







25.00% 11


75.00% 33


Q37 Are there any facility or grounds
related needs that should be a priority for


the 2015-2016 school year?
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


Yes


No


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Yes


No


40 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







40.91% 18


27.27% 12


15.91% 7


15.91% 7


Q38 My supervisor provides regular,
consistent, helpful review of my


performance.
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


4. Always


3. Most of the
Time


2.
Inconsistently


1. Rarely or
not at all


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


4. Always


3. Most of the Time


2. Inconsistently


1. Rarely or not at all


41 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







25.00% 11


40.91% 18


22.73% 10


11.36% 5


Q39 Personnel policies and procedures are
administered consistently across the


District.
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


4. Always


3. Most of the
Time


2.
Inconsistently


1. Rarely or
not at all


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


4. Always


3. Most of the Time


2. Inconsistently


1. Rarely or not at all


42 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







38.64% 17


40.91% 18


18.18% 8


2.27% 1


Q40 Training and Professional Development
is promoted for all employees.


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


4. Always


3. Most of the
Time


2.
Inconsistently


1. Rarely or
not at all


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


4. Always


3. Most of the Time


2. Inconsistently


1. Rarely or not at all


43 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







34.09% 15


36.36% 16


15.91% 7


13.64% 6


Q41 I am respected as a person and my
opinion is valued.


Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


4. Always


3. Most of the
Time


2.
Inconsistently


1. Rarely or
not at all


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


4. Always


3. Most of the Time


2. Inconsistently


1. Rarely or not at all


44 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







40.91% 18


27.27% 12


9.09% 4


22.73% 10


Q42 When working in a group or on a team,
I am able to express my views without fear


of retribution.
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


4. Always


3. Most of the
Time


2.
Inconsistently


1. Rarely or
not at all


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


4. Always


3. Most of the Time


2. Inconsistently


1. Rarely or not at all


45 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q43 For any of these areas above
(Questions 38-42), please describe how


they could be improved.
Answered: 12 Skipped: 39


46 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q44 What single action could the Board of
Education take to strengthen the academics


at Sears School?
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


47 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







34.09% 15


31.82% 14


22.73% 10


11.36% 5


0.00% 0


Q45 On a scale of one to five, with five
meaning highly satisfied, please rate your
overall satisfaction with The Joseph Sears


School
Answered: 44 Skipped: 7


Total 44


5 Highly
Satisfied


4 Satisfied


3 Neutral


2 Dissatisfied


1 Highly
Dissatisfied


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


5 Highly Satisfied


4 Satisfied


3 Neutral


2 Dissatisfied


1 Highly Dissatisfied


48 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q46 Please share any additional
suggestions you have for the Board of


Education.
Answered: 10 Skipped: 41


49 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







16.67% 7


40.48% 17


23.81% 10


19.05% 8


Q47 The Principal explores multiple sides
of topics and recognizes that other options


exist.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


50 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







7.14% 3


23.81% 10


47.62% 20


21.43% 9


Q48 A few vocal parents can change school
policy.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


51 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







21.43% 9


40.48% 17


9.52% 4


28.57% 12


Q49 The Principal is respectful of all faculty
and staff members.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


52 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







30.95% 13


50.00% 21


16.67% 7


2.38% 1


Q50 The learning environment is orderly
and serious.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


53 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







45.24% 19


28.57% 12


14.29% 6


11.90% 5


Q51 The Principal is friendly and
approachable.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


54 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







7.14% 3


28.57% 12


47.62% 20


16.67% 7


Q52 Select citizen groups are influential
with the Board.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


55 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







57.14% 24


42.86% 18


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


Q53 The School sets high standards for
academic performance.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


56 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







54.76% 23


40.48% 17


4.76% 2


0.00% 0


Q54 Teachers help and support each other.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


57 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







7.14% 3


23.81% 10


33.33% 14


35.71% 15


Q55 The Principal responds to pressure
from parents.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


58 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







19.05% 8


38.10% 16


33.33% 14


9.52% 4


Q56 The Principal lets faculty know what is
expected.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


59 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







28.57% 12


64.29% 27


7.14% 3


0.00% 0


Q57 Students are dedicated to their
successful learning and are respected for


related behaviors.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


60 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







9.52% 4


38.10% 16


47.62% 20


4.76% 2


Q58 Teachers feel pressure from the
community.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


61 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







33.33% 14


33.33% 14


21.43% 9


11.90% 5


Q59 The Principal maintains definite
standards of performance.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


62 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







80.95% 34


16.67% 7


2.38% 1


0.00% 0


Q60 Teachers in this school believe that
their students have the ability to achieve


academically.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


63 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







21.43% 9


59.52% 25


19.05% 8


0.00% 0


Q61 Students seek extra support and
guidance so they are successful learners.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


64 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







23.81% 10


71.43% 30


4.76% 2


0.00% 0


Q62 Parents collaborate with the school to
support the maintenance of high standards.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


65 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







7.14% 3


54.76% 23


33.33% 14


4.76% 2


Q63 Students try hard to improve on
previous work.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


66 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







50.00% 21


47.62% 20


2.38% 1


0.00% 0


Q64 Teachers accomplish their jobs with
enthusiasm.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


67 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







42.86% 18


38.10% 16


19.05% 8


0.00% 0


Q65 Academic achievement is recognized
and acknowledged by the School.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


68 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







9.52% 4


42.86% 18


30.95% 13


16.67% 7


Q66 The Principal puts suggestions made
by the faculty into operation.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


69 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







40.48% 17


52.38% 22


7.14% 3


0.00% 0


Q67 Teachers respect the professional
competence of their colleagues.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


70 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







19.05% 8


57.14% 24


19.05% 8


4.76% 2


Q68 Parents press for school improvement.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


71 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







30.95% 13


61.90% 26


7.14% 3


0.00% 0


Q69 The interactions between faculty
members are cooperative.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


72 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







64.29% 27


35.71% 15


0.00% 0


0.00% 0


Q70 Students in this school can achieve the
goals that have been set for them.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


73 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







69.05% 29


28.57% 12


2.38% 1


0.00% 0


Q71 Teachers in this school exercise
professional judgement.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


74 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







11.90% 5


19.05% 8


54.76% 23


14.29% 6


Q72 The school is vulnerable to outside
pressures.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


75 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







50.00% 21


26.19% 11


19.05% 8


4.76% 2


Q73 The Principal is willing to make
changes.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


76 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







83.33% 35


14.29% 6


2.38% 1


0.00% 0


Q74 Teachers "go the extra mile" with their
students.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


77 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







47.62% 20


45.24% 19


7.14% 3


0.00% 0


Q75 Teachers provide strong social support
for colleagues.
Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


78 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







88.10% 37


9.52% 4


2.38% 1


0.00% 0


Q76 Teachers are committed to their
students.


Answered: 42 Skipped: 9


Total 42


Very
Frequently...


Often Occurs


Sometimes
Occurs


Rarely Occurs


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Answer Choices Responses


Very Frequently Occurs


Often Occurs


Sometimes Occurs


Rarely Occurs


79 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015







Q77 Please note any comments you have
regarding a particular survey question or


any general comment.
Answered: 8 Skipped: 43


80 / 80


Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015





		Executive Summary to Faculty Survey

		Data_All_150804






 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
 
Date: August 17, 2015 
 
RE: Master Schedule Changes 
 


Schedule Overview of Updates 
 
After more than 10 years of hard work, research, small changes and great thinking, The Joseph 
Sears School will launch a new schedule for the 2015-16 school year. The new schedule was 
formed through a committee consisting of Principal Kendra Wallace and teacher representatives 
from each grade level and discipline. The committee gathered and incorporated feedback from 
parents, students and community members throughout the process. 
 


What is new in the 2015-2016 schedule for grades 6th through 8th? 
• A	
  biweekly	
  extended	
  80-­‐minute	
  science	
  period	
  for	
  junior	
  high	
  science	
  labs.	
  	
  
• A	
  biweekly	
  34-­‐minute	
  advisory	
  period	
  for	
  junior	
  high	
  students	
  to	
  allow	
  for	
  individual	
  


student	
  guidance,	
  goal	
  setting,	
  social	
  emotional	
  education,	
  mentoring,	
  leadership	
  
opportunities	
  and	
  class	
  group	
  activities.	
  


• A	
  triweekly	
  34-­‐minute	
  period	
  dedicated	
  to	
  enrichment,	
  which	
  would	
  allow	
  for	
  
individualized	
  student	
  support,	
  band,	
  orchestra	
  and	
  choir.	
  	
  Enrichment	
  periods	
  will	
  
be	
  a	
  combination	
  of	
  academic	
  focus	
  and	
  support	
  and	
  enrichment	
  activities	
  like	
  
debate,	
  robotics	
  and	
  coding.	
  


• Lunch	
  period	
  has	
  been	
  shortened	
  by	
  12	
  minutes,	
  and	
  will	
  last	
  for	
  40	
  minutes	
  with	
  a	
  3	
  
minute	
  passing	
  period	
  to	
  lunch	
  and	
  from	
  lunch	
  to	
  class	
  making	
  it	
  a	
  total	
  block	
  of	
  46	
  
minutes.	
  


• Students	
  will	
  engage	
  in	
  4	
  Specials	
  classes	
  instead	
  of	
  five.	
  Special	
  classes	
  (Industrial	
  
Arts,	
  Practical	
  Arts,	
  Art	
  and	
  General	
  Music)	
  meet	
  three	
  times	
  per	
  week	
  instead	
  of	
  five	
  
times	
  per	
  week,	
  but	
  last	
  for	
  a	
  quarter	
  of	
  the	
  year.	
  	
  Health	
  will	
  be	
  imbedded	
  into	
  P.E.	
  


• Junior	
  High	
  English/Language	
  Arts	
  has	
  been	
  reduced	
  from	
  80	
  to	
  60	
  minutes	
  per	
  day	
  
and	
  will	
  integrate	
  reading	
  and	
  writing.	
  	
  Integrating	
  English	
  and	
  Language	
  Arts	
  aligns	
  
with	
  best	
  practices	
  in	
  education	
  research	
  and	
  emulates	
  the	
  High	
  School	
  model.	
  


• Junior	
  High	
  mathematics	
  classes	
  will	
  increase	
  to	
  60	
  minutes	
  to	
  align	
  with	
  best	
  
practice	
  and	
  brain	
  research	
  in	
  this	
  field.	
  


 
What is new about the 5th Grade Schedule? 


• Fifth	
  grade	
  students	
  will	
  be	
  begin	
  the	
  transition	
  to	
  a	
  junior	
  high-­‐like	
  schedule.	
  They	
  
will	
  have	
  a	
  teacher	
  for	
  Math/Science	
  and	
  a	
  different	
  teacher	
  for	
  English/Social	
  
Studies.	
  	
  


• Fifth	
  grade	
  students	
  will	
  now	
  have	
  the	
  opportunity	
  to	
  take	
  industrial	
  arts	
  and	
  
practical	
  arts	
  in	
  addition	
  to	
  art	
  and	
  general	
  music.	
  







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


• World	
  Language	
  minutes	
  have	
  returned	
  to	
  40	
  minutes	
  to	
  support	
  5th	
  grade	
  being	
  the	
  
beginning	
  of	
  the	
  secondary	
  world	
  language	
  curriculum.	
  


• Lunch	
  period	
  has	
  been	
  shortened	
  by	
  12	
  minutes,	
  and	
  will	
  last	
  for	
  40	
  minutes	
  with	
  a	
  3	
  
minute	
  passing	
  period	
  to	
  lunch	
  and	
  from	
  lunch	
  to	
  class	
  making	
  it	
  a	
  total	
  block	
  of	
  46	
  
minutes.	
  


• Students	
  will	
  participate	
  in	
  band	
  and	
  orchestra	
  within	
  their	
  school	
  day.	
  
 


What changes have occurred in the kindergarten-4th grade schedules? 
• Students	
  will	
  receive	
  increased	
  instructional	
  time	
  for	
  mathematics	
  (20	
  minutes	
  per	
  


day),	
  science/social	
  studies	
  (20	
  minutes)	
  and	
  reading/writing	
  (10	
  minutes	
  per	
  day).	
  	
  
• Lunch	
  period	
  has	
  been	
  shortened	
  by	
  12	
  minutes,	
  and	
  will	
  last	
  for	
  40	
  minutes	
  with	
  a	
  3	
  


minute	
  passing	
  period	
  to	
  lunch	
  and	
  from	
  lunch	
  to	
  class	
  making	
  it	
  a	
  total	
  block	
  of	
  46	
  
minutes.	
  


• World	
  language	
  classes	
  will	
  meet	
  three	
  times	
  per	
  week	
  in	
  a	
  World	
  Language	
  
classrooms	
  and	
  world	
  language	
  teachers	
  will	
  create	
  authentic	
  language	
  experiences	
  
for	
  children	
  twice	
  per	
  week	
  in	
  environments	
  like	
  lunch,	
  social	
  emotional	
  learning	
  
where	
  the	
  push	
  into	
  the	
  children’s	
  classroom	
  or	
  environment	
  and	
  utilize	
  the	
  target	
  
langauge.	
  	
  


• A	
  biweekly	
  34-­‐minute	
  period	
  for	
  first-­‐grade	
  students	
  devoted	
  to	
  social	
  emotional	
  
learning.	
  This	
  allows	
  for	
  balance	
  between	
  rigorous	
  academic	
  work	
  and	
  social	
  growth	
  
while	
  reducing	
  anxiety	
  and	
  providing	
  time	
  for	
  fun.	
  


• Each	
  primary	
  grade	
  level	
  will	
  have	
  a	
  consistent	
  daily	
  schedule.	
  
 
 








NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 


THE 17TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2015 
 


PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38, Cook County, Illinois 
will hold a Regular Meeting on the 17th day of August, 2015 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., for the Closed Session meeting in Room 
252 and at 7:30 o’clock p.m. for the Open Session in the Library Technology Center of The Joseph Sears School, 542 
Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois. 
 


 
Room 252 (Closed Session – 6:00 p.m.) 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 


 
Present     Absent     Present    Absent 


Scott Wallace  ______      ______  Melinda M. Kelly ______      ______ 
Suzanne S. Nelson ______      ______  Timothy Kollar  ______      ______ 
Danielle Boros  ______      ______  Stacey M. Van Metre ______      ______ 
Donna E. Keller  ______      ______ 
 


II. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE MATTERS, 
PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION AND PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE 
OF THE PUBLIC BODY   


 
Library Technology Center (Open Session – 7:30 p.m.) 


 
III. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 


Present     Absent     Present    Absent 
Scott Wallace  ______      ______  Melinda M. Kelly ______      ______ 
Suzanne S. Nelson                   ______  Timothy Kollar  ______      ______ 
Danielle Boros  ______      ______  Stacey M. Van Metre ______      ______ 
Donna E. Keller  ______      ______ 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment) 


 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 


A. Freedom of Information Act Requests – There were five requests for records since June 15, 2015. 
B. Report from the Superintendent 


➢  Review of Student Drop Off and Crossing Guard Plans 
➢  Review of Enrollment Report  


C. Report from the Chief School Business Official 
➢  Review of Accounts Payable and Monthly Financials 
➢  Presentation of FY16 Tentative Budget 


D. Report from the Principal  
➢  Review of Student Enrollment and Student Assessment for 2015-2016 
➢  Review of Master Schedule for 2015-2016 


E. Report from the Director of Student Services  
➢  Review of Student Enrollment and Services for 2015-2016 
➢  Update on District 109 Withdrawal From NSSED 


 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 


A. Approval of Minutes of the July 14, 2015, Special Meeting and Closed Session 
B. Approval of Financial Report for June and July 2015 







C. Approval of Investment Report for June and July 2015 
D. Ratification of Accounts Payable for June 16, 2015 to July 30, 2015 
E. Approval of Accounts Payable for July 31, 2015 to August 17, 2015 
F. Authorization to Destroy Closed Session Recording for March 2014 
G. Approval of Family Medical Leave Request (Closed Session) 
H. Acceptance of Employee Resignation from Instructional Assistant (Closed Session) 


 
 


VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
➢ Review Proposed Strategic Plan Objectives and Action Items for the 2015-2016 School Year 
➢ Review and Potential Action to Approve 2015-2016 Administrator Goals 
➢ Discussion of 2015-2016 Community Forums 


 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 


A. Review and Potential Action to Approve Recommendations to Hire Vicki Saxton as 1.0FTE Eighth Grade Social 
Studies Teacher (Closed Session) 


B. Review and Potential Action to Approve Recommendations to Hire Instructional Assistants (Closed Session) 
C. Presentation of and Potential Action to Approve Annual Survey Executive Summaries for Distribution 
D. Discussion of and Potential Approval of Kenilworth Education Association Teacher Evaluation Instrument 


(Closed Session) 
E. Adopt the Tentative Fiscal Year 2016 Budget and Approve a Public Hearing 
 


 
IX. OTHER BUSINESS 


 
X. PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment) 


 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 


 
Dated the 14th day of August, 2015. 


   


 
        Chike Erokwu 
        Secretary, Board of Education 
        Kenilworth School District No. 38 








Kenilworth School District No. 38 


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
July 14, 2015, Strategic Retreat Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 
 


MINUTES FOR THE STRATEGIC BOARD RETREAT OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 


THE 14TH DAY OF JULY, 2015 
 
The meeting was called to order by President Scott Wallace at 8:06 a.m. Upon Roll Call, the following 
board members answered as being present: Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson, Mr. Timothy 
Kollar, Mrs. Melinda Kelly and Mrs. Donna Keller. Mrs. Danielle Boros and Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre 
were absent. 
 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services 
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace entertained a motion to go into Closed Session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE 
MATTERS, SELF-EVALUATION, PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION AND PURCHASE OR 
LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY 
 
Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre moved, seconded by Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson, to go into Closed Session at 6:05 p.m. to 
consider Information Regarding Specific Employee Matters, Collective Bargaining, Pending or Probable Litigation 
and Purchase or Lease of Real Property for use of the Public Body. 
 
Roll Call: 


Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson 
Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre 
Mrs. Danielle Boros 
Mr. Timothy Kollar 


Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 


 
The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0 with two members absent. 
        
The Board returned to Open Session at 11:20 a.m. 
 
The following board members answered as being present:  Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson, 
Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mr. Timothy Kollar, Mrs. Melinda Kelly and Mrs. Donna Keller. Mrs. Stacey M. Van 
Metre was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO  
Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 







Kenilworth School District No. 38 


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
July 14, 2015, Strategic Retreat Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 
 


Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services;  
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Communication Coordinator 
 
Community Members: No members of the community were present. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace invited public comment. There was none. 
 
DISCUSSION OF EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF ANNUAL SURVEY 
 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly began the discussion of the executive summary to the annual survey by 
summarizing the discussions that took place among board members leading up to the first draft of the 
summary. Mrs. Kelly noted that group decided to present the survey data in a succinct, one-page 
document that accurately shows district’s main strengths and areas for improvement according to 
parents. 
 
The board discussed the length of the survey and generally agreed the survey format needs to be 
revisited and modified. Board members discussed the merits of keeping old questions in the survey to 
track response and satisfaction from year to year. The board determined historical data from 2014 
responses will be added to the executive summary before the summary is released to the public. 
 
DISCUSSION OF STRATEGIC PLAN YEAR 3 DEVELOPMENT 
 
Mr. Scott Wallace suggested the board wrap up established goals in final year of the three-year strategic 
plan then move toward a more high-level strategic plan going forward. Mr. Wallace said he hopes the 
board can deliver on all goals, including those set forth in the curriculum section. 
 
Board members discussed the importance of community forums. Board members determined that a 
community forum would be held in spring once the board finalizes its strategic plan for 2016 and 
beyond.  
 
The board evaluated its mission statement in the context of discussions about a future strategic plan. 
Mrs. Wallace said the district needs a vision statement to bring purpose to district affairs. Board 
members discussed concepts in which they would like to see incorporated in the vision statement. A 
guiding mantra of “Dedication to Excellence” will be incorporated into the vision statement and possibly 
the strategic plan. Administrators would be responsible for creating the first draft of the 2015-2016 
strategic plan and presenting a draft to the board in February. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


Mr. Scott Wallace asked if there were any questions regarding the Consent Agenda. There being no 
questions or discussion, Mr. Wallace asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
 
Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson moved to approve the Consent Agenda to include approval for: Minutes of the June 15, 
2015 Regular Meeting, Authorization to destroy Closed Session recording from February 2014; and the 
Communication Coordinator pro-rated salary increase for 2015-2016. The motion was seconded by Mr. Tim Kollar. 







Kenilworth School District No. 38 


Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
July 14, 2015, Strategic Retreat Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 
 


 
Roll Call: 


Yes      No      Absent   Abstain 
Mr. Scott Wallace 
Mrs. Suzanne S. Nelson 


Mrs. Stacey M. Van Metre 
Mrs. Danielle Boros 
Mr. Timothy Kollar 
Mrs. Donna Keller 
Mrs. Melinda Kelly 


 
The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Board members expressed concern Dr. Kalinich has continued to work in the district after her 
resignation date. Dr. LeRoy explained email access is typically shut off for district employees days after 
they leave the district. Board members asked Dr. LeRoy to have Dr. Kalinich transfer any ongoing 
activities to her and complete the superintendent transition. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
There was no new business. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was no other business. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mr. Wallace invited public comment. There was none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business Mr. Wallace entertained a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson moved, seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller, to adjourn the meeting at 12:58 p.m. 
 
The motion carried with all yeses. 
 
Attest for Distribution: ___________________________________ 
     Chike Erokwu, Secretary    


 
Approved: ____________________________________ 


           Scott Wallace, President 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________________________ 
     Chike Erokwu, Secretary 








Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  July	
  2015


8/14/15


Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  July	
  1,	
  2015
Investment	
  Balance 11,933,077.71
Bank	
  Balance 4,644,715.78


Revenues	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget


2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals


2015-­‐2016	
  
Tentative	
  Budget


Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance


%	
  
Received


2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD


10 Education	
   9,869,872.00 10,076,447.30 10,191,090.00 8,779,783.72 13.85% 1,411,306.28
20 Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,518,939.00 1,603,097.51 1,624,932.00 1,406,475.97 13.44% 218,456.03
30 Debt	
  Service	
   990,048.00 1,026,958.02 1,056,069.00 895,864.72 15.17% 160,204.28
40 Transportation 42,870.00 12,454.67 12,315.00 10,530.18 14.49% 1,784.82
50 IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 271,357.00 269,721.28 276,872.00 233,062.74 15.82% 43,809.26
60 Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
70 Working	
  Cash 14,615.00 80,898.37 85,000.00 71,967.20 15.33% 13,032.80
80 Tort	
  Fund 165,856.00 137,451.58 172,482.00 147,361.46 14.56% 25,120.54
90 Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total	
  Revenue	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 11,545,045.99 13.96% 1,873,714.01


Expenditures	
  by	
  Fund
2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget


2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals


2015-­‐2016	
  
Tentative	
  Budget


Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance


%	
  
Expended


2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD


10 Education	
   9,840,276.00 9,806,168.71 10,273,681.00 10,073,306.09 1.95% 200,374.91
20 Operations	
  &	
  Maintenance 1,796,445.00 1,029,580.88 4,372,142.00 4,334,742.02 0.86% 37,399.98
30 Debt	
  Service	
   1,028,500.00 991,808.14 1,021,562.00 1,021,562.00 0.00% 0.00
40 Transportation 52,015.00 23,559.73 24,738.00 24,738.00 0.00% 0.00
50 IMRF	
  &	
  Social	
  Security 289,286.00 237,214.75 254,243.00 248,271.34 2.35% 5,971.66
60 Capital	
  Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
70 Working	
  Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
80 Tort	
  Fund 156,676.00 85,359.79 89,628.00 89,628.00 0.00% 0.00
90 Fire	
  Prevention	
  &	
  Life	
  Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 16,035,994.00 15,792,247.45 1.52% 243,746.55


Fund	
  Balance	
  as	
  of	
  July	
  31,	
  2016 18,207,760.95







Kenilworth	
  School	
  District	
  No.	
  38
Monthly	
  Financials	
  -­‐	
  July	
  2015


8/14/15


2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget


2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals


2015-­‐2016	
  
Tenative	
  Budget


Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance


%	
  
Received


2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD


Revenues	
  by	
  Source
Tax	
  Levy 11,938,274.00 11,943,341.48 12,178,918.00 10,369,123.40 14.86% 1,809,794.60 	
  
Other	
  Local	
  Revenue 544,873.00 933,382.04 895,342.00 873,378.02 2.45% 21,963.98
State	
  Revenue 304,445.00 238,193.20 239,500.00 197,544.57 17.52% 41,955.43
Federal	
  Revenue 85,965.00 92,112.01 105,000.00 105,000.00 0.00% 0.00
Other	
  Financial	
  Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total	
  revenues	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 12,873,557.00 13,207,028.73 13,418,760.00 11,545,045.99 13.96% 1,873,714.01


2014-­‐15	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Budget


2014-­‐2015	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Unaudited	
  Actuals


2015-­‐2016	
  
Tenative	
  Budget


Budget	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Balance


%	
  
Expended


2015-­‐2016	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
YTD


Expenditures	
  by	
  Object
Salaries 7,407,791.00 7,288,548.00 7,515,233.00 7,430,280.82 1.13% 84,952.18
Benefits	
   1,325,327.00 1,400,474.03 1,463,060.00 1,440,040.74 1.57% 23,019.26
Purchased	
  Services 1,294,940.00 1,200,763.90 1,937,127.00 1,853,592.29 4.31% 83,534.71
Supplies 687,998.00 642,083.79 642,864.00 595,653.61 7.34% 47,210.39
Capital	
  Outlay 1,175,825.00 414,273.23 3,434,544.00 3,434,544.00 0.00% 0.00
Other	
  Expenses 1,271,316.00 1,227,549.05 1,043,166.00 1,038,135.99 0.48% 5,030.01
Total	
  Expenditures	
  -­‐	
  All	
  Funds 13,163,197.00 12,173,692.00 16,035,994.00 15,792,247.45 1.52% 243,746.55


Excess	
  or	
  (Deficit)	
  Revenues -­‐289,640.00	
   1,033,336.73 -­‐2,617,234.00	
  
Over	
  Expenditures


Fund	
  Balance	
  As	
  of	
  July	
  1st 14,751,934.00 14,462,294.00 16,577,793.49


Budgeted	
  Fund	
  Balance	
  -­‐	
  June	
  30th 14,462,294.00 15,495,630.73 13,960,559.49












 


 


 
 
Dear Sears Community, 
 
As part of our ongoing pursuit of excellence and continuous improvement, the Kenilworth School 
District No. 38 Board of Education annually solicits community feedback in the form of a parent survey.  
We collected 281 responses from families of the 500 children enrolled during the 2014-2015 school 
year. The information we collected is a highly valued tool we use to monitor community feedback with 
regard to our school’s educational performance, culture, communication, finances and facilities. 
 
We used the percentage of affirmative responses (strongly agree, agree, excellent and good) to calculate 
general satisfaction with regard to a specific question. Below are the District’s top four areas of 
satisfaction based on parent feedback: 
 


• About 93% of surveyed parents rate the Joseph Sears School as good or excellent. 
• About 90% of surveyed parents are satisfied with the Sears to Home newsletter. 
• At least 88% of surveyed parents at each grade level feel academic progress had been adequately 


discussed during parent/teacher conferences. 
• At least 81% of surveyed parents feel their child was sufficiently challenged this year. 


 
In addition, surveyed parents indicated that teachers, small class sizes, technology integration and the 
school’s community traditions are all district strengths. 
 
While the survey indicated satisfaction in some areas, parents identified the following as areas in need of 
improvement: 
 


• Only 78% of surveyed parents feel the board communicates in an open, honest, respectful and 
timely manner. 


• Only 73% of surveyed parents feel the administration communicates in an open, honest, 
respectful and timely manner. 


• Only 65% of surveyed parents feel the school website is easy to navigate. 
• Only 65% of surveyed parents feel the playground and lunch rules are fair and appropriate. 


 
In addition, surveyed parents indicated that the renovation of the park district’s village house, the 
installation of air conditioning throughout buildings and discipline administered at the junior high level 
could be improved.  
 
We would like to thank all of our parents for taking the time to respond to the survey.  Your feedback is 
extremely important as we continue improving our school and our performance.  We are committed to 
making Sears the best school for the children of Kenilworth. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 







 


 


 
 
 


Survey Question Data 
 
Improving the culture within The Joseph Sears School has been a key component of our Strategic 
Plan. The following questions focus on the students. Please rate your agreement with each 
statement: 
 


My child(ren) understands and practices the four Cornerstone Behaviors 
	
  


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No 
Opinion 


Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


53% 41% 4% 1% 1% 1% 281 


All Parents 
(2014) 


47% 45% 7% 1% 0%  245 


Change +6% -4% -3% 0% +1% +1% +36 
 
Summary: Parent comments generally indicate their children understand the Four Cornerstones and that 
the Four Cornerstones need to be reinforced among younger children.   


	
  
My child(ren) practices age appropriate self-assessment, goal-setting and self-advocacy. 


	
  
 Strongly 


Agree 
Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 


Disagree 
No 


Opinion 
Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


37% 50% 10% 2% 0% 0% 281 


All Parents 
(2014) 


40% 47% 12% 2% 0%  243 


Change -3% +3% -2% 0% 0% 0% +38 
 
Summary: Parent comments indicate children are still developing these skills, especially with regard to 
goal setting. 
 


My child(ren) understands the definition of bullying and procedures for how to handle it. 
	
  


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


42% 42% 9% 4% 1% 0% 281 


All Parents 
(2014) 


42% 47% 10% 1% 0%  245 


Change 0% -5% -1% +3% +1% 0% +36 







 


 


 
Summary: Parent comments indicate most children understand bullying, though younger children 
understand bullying less than older children. 
 


The playground and lunch rules are fair and appropriate. 
	
  


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


21% 44% 17% 7% 4% 6% 281 


All Parents 
(2014) 


25% 43% 21% 10% 1%  244 


Change -4% +1% -4% -3% +3% +6% +37 
 
Summary: Parent comments indicate a need for closer supervision of playground behavior by 
teachers/staff as well as more consistent enforcement of discipline. 
  


(Junior High Only) Discipline is delivered in a fair and consistent manner for Junior High Students 
 


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


18% 34% 12% 5% 4% 27% 176 


All Parents 
(2014) 


18% 32% 33% 12% 5%  147 


Change 0% +2% -21% -7% -1% +27% +29 
 
Summary: Several parents cited the dress code as an example of discipline applied inconsistently. 
Parents also expressed concern about the lack of communication from the school in the event of a 
discipline scenario. 
 
The Board of Education envisions a culture whereby there is transparency in decision-making 
after careful consideration of alternatives.  
 


Please indicate your satisfaction with the transparency of deliberations and decision making. 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
22% 43% 16% 12% 8% 279 


All Parents 
(2014) 


18% 47% 20% 9% 7% 245 


Change +4% -4% -4% +3% +1% +34 
 







 


 


Summary: Several parents expressed dissatisfaction with the Board’s decision making regarding the 
master schedule and lunchtime changes. Other parents raised concerns about the timeliness and accuracy 
of communications and minutes. 
 
The following questions continue to focus on the culture at Sears with an emphasis on parents and 
community members. Please rate your agreement with the following statements. 


 
The Board of Education communicates in an open, honest, respectful and timely manner with the 


community. 
 


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


26% 52% 11% 6% 3% 2% 281 


All Parents 
(2014) 


27% 49% 17% 3% 1% 4% 245 


Change -1% +3% -6% +3% +2% -2% +36 
 
Summary: Some parents expressed concern with the timeliness of board communications such as Board 
Briefs and minutes. Others expressed frustration with the public comment portion of board meetings. 


 
 
 
 
 


The Administration communicates in an open, honest, respectful and timely manner with the community. 
 


 
 


Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


22% 51% 14% 8% 5% 1% 281 


All Parents 
(2014) 


13% 46% 22% 12% 4% 3% 245 


Change +9% +5% -8% -4% +1% -2% +36 
 
Summary: Many parents noted that communication from the Administration has greatly improved over 
the past calendar year. Parents expressed frustration with the communication that occurred during the 
school lockout incident.  
 


I understand and practice the appropriate way to communicate with Faculty and Administration. 
 


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


41% 51% 5% 1% 0% 1% 279 







 


 


All Parents 
(2014) 


32% 48% 14% 2% 0% 2% 244 


Change +9% +3% -9% -1% 0% -1% +35 
 
Summary: Most parents expressed understanding of how to communicate with faculty and staff. 
 


I believe that I communicate with all stakeholders in the Sears' community in a fair and respectful 
manner. 


 
 Strongly 


Agree 
Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 


Disagree 
No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


48% 44% 5% 1% 0% 2% 279 


All Parents 
(2014) 


40% 45% 12% 1% 0% 2% 243 


Change +8% -1% -7% 0% 0% 0% +36 
 
Summary: Most parents responded by saying they communicate well with others in the Sears 
community. 


 
The Sears to Home and our website are two of the School District's ways to communicate with 
parents, students, faculty and staff. Please rate your satisfaction with these methods of 
communication. 


Sears to Home 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
41% 49% 7% 2% 1% 276 


All Parents 
(2014) 


47% 45% 5% 2% 1% 242 


Change -6% +4% +2% 0% 0% +34 
 


Summary: Most parents expressed the need for a more concise Sears to Home. Parents also indicated 
they would like to see more advanced notice of special events in Sears to Home.  
 


Usefulness of Information on the Website 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
29% 54% 13% 1% 3% 277 


All Parents* 
(2014) 


27% 52% 14% 4% 2% 246 


Change +2% +2% -1% -3% +1% +31 







 


 


 
Summary: Some parents commented that events are sometimes missing from the website calendar. 
Others commented they could not find information on the website. 
 


Ease of Navigation of Website 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
17% 48% 25% 7% 3% 276 


All Parents* 
(2014) 


27% 52% 14% 4% 2% 246 


Change -10% -4% +11% +3% +1% +30 
 
Summary: Many parents expressed confusion over the district’s website layout and navigation. Parents 
cited the separation between the district and school as particularly confusing. Parents also commented 
that some areas of the website have not been regularly updated. 
 


The Parent/Student Handbook and Directory is a comprehensive District publication inclusive of key 
District policies and procedures. Are you familiar with the contents of the Parent/Student Handbook and 


Directory? 
 


 Yes No Partially Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
89% 2% 9% 278 


 
 
Please indicate how often you use each of the following Board of Education communications and 
provide comments as to their effectiveness: 
 


Board Meeting Agendas 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
19% 57% 20% 4% 278 


All Parents 
(2014) 


22% 50% 21% 7% 256 


Change -3% +7% -1% -3% +22 
 


Board Meeting Minutes 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
23% 48% 25% 4% 277 


All Parents 29% 44% 20% 7% 256 







 


 


(2014) 
Change -6% +4% +5% -3% +21 


 
Monthly Board Briefs 


 
 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


44% 38% 14% 3% 278 


All Parents 
(2014) 


49% 31% 14% 6% 256 


Change -5% +7% 0% -3% +22 
 


Board Meeting Videotape 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
9% 29% 58% 5% 276 


All Parents 
(2014) 


7% 25% 59% 8% 256 


Change +2% +4% -1% -3% +20 
 


Board Meeting Live Streaming 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
7% 22% 65% 5% 277 


All Parents 
(2014) 


7% 19% 65% 9% 256 


Change 0% +3% 0% -4% 21 
 


Board Annual Report 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
30% 43% 22% 5% 276 


All Parents 
(2014) 


25% 42% 26% 7% 256 


Change +5% +1% -4% -2% 20 
 


listen@kenilworth38.org 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 







 


 


All Parents 
(2015) 


8% 24% 58% 10% 274 


All Parents 
(2014) 


2% 23% 59% 16% 256 


Change +6% +1% -1% -6% 18 
 


Community Forums 
 


 Often Seldom Never No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
16% 42% 35% 7% 275 


 
Summary: Parents indicated that while they may not use every form of board communication, they are 
pleased to have these communications available should they decide they need additional information on 
a subject. A number of parents commented they were not aware of community forums or the 
listen@kenilworth38.org email address. 
 
 
For the 12th year in a row, the State Board of Education has awarded Kenilworth School District with 
the highest financial rating. Do you think that the District has been fiscally responsible this past year? 


 
 Yes No Unsure Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


66% 5% 29% 276 


All Parents 
(2014) 


63% 5% 32% 242 


Change 3% 0% -3% 34 
 


Summary: Parents commented on different concerns with regard to school fees, but the data suggests 
that overall,  parents believed the district has been fiscally responsible. 
 


Are there any facility or grounds-related needs that should be a priority? 
 


 Yes No Unsure Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
38% 23% 39% 276 


 
Summary: The majority of parents cited the need to install air conditioning throughout the building, find 
a better cafeteria solution aside from the Park District’s Village House and renovate the bathrooms as 
top district grounds priorities. 
 
Our Student Services Department consists of our Special Education Teachers, Literacy Specialists, Math 


Coach, School Social Workers, School Psychologist, Speech/Language Pathologist and School Nurse. 
Please rate the effectiveness of their services. 







 


 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Other Position 


Not Listed 
Responses 


All Parents 
(2015) 


48% 29% 9% 1% 11% 1% 276 


All Parents 
(2014) 


43% 37% 6% 2% 12%  242 


Change +5% -8% +3% -1% -1% +1% +34 
 
Summary: Many parents expressed satisfaction with personnel in the student services department. 
 
 


How would you rate the Joseph Sears School Overall? 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
All Parents 


(2015) 
59% 34% 6% 1% 0% 276 


All Parents 
(2014) 


52% 40% 7% 0% 1% 242 


Change +7% -6% -1% +1% -1% +34 
 
Summary: Many parents remarked they are pleased with the school as a whole. 
 


What do you think is especially good about Sears School? 
 


Summary: The majority of parents indicated the teachers are what is especially good about Sears. 
Parents also remarked the small class sizes, the community atmosphere and the traditions are all great 
parts of the school. 
 


What would you like to see changed or improved? 
 
Summary: Parents commented an improved curriculum, improved communication from teachers and 
school leaders as well as more focus on the transition to high school are the three areas in which the 
school can improve. 
 


Category specific questions 
 


Overall, how would you rate your child’s school year? 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 (2015) 52% 45% 2% 0% 1% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 60% 36% 0% 3% 1% 163 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 







 


 


Grades 3-5 (2015) 50% 41% 7% 1% 1% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 56% 36% 4% 3% 1% 113 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades 6-8 (2015) 28% 59% 9% 3% 0% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 31% 53% 12% 4% 0% 124 


 
Summary: Parents generally remarked their children have had good or excellent school years due to the 
classroom teachers. A number of teachers were singled out as particularly outstanding. 
 


Was your child sufficiently challenged this year? 
 


 Yes No Unsure Responses 
Grades JK-2 (2015) 89% 7% 5% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 85% 7% 8% 163 


 
 Yes No Unsure Responses 


Grades 3-5 (2015) 85% 9% 6% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 87% 9% 4% 114 


 
 Yes No Unsure Responses 


Grades 6-8 (2015) 81% 13% 6% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 83% 10% 7% 124 


 
Summary: Many parents commented that middle school math and junior high science are two areas in 
which students can be challenged more thoroughly. Parents also mentioned student grouping by 
academic ability can be improved. 
 


Are you satisfied with the integration of technology in your child's classroom and assignments? 
 


 Yes No Unsure Responses 
Grades JK-2 (2015) 80% 2% 17% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 86% 4% 10% 163 


 
 Yes No Unsure Responses 


Grades 3-5 (2015) 87% 6% 7% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 86% 5% 9% 114 


 
 Yes No Unsure Responses 


Grades 6-8 (2015) 82% 6% 13% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 85% 6% 9% 124 







 


 


 
Summary: Parents offered varying levels of satisfaction with the use of technology in the school in the 
comments section. Generally parents were pleased with school technology. 
 


Does the quality of your child's homework emphasize real learning and reinforcement? 
 


 Strongly 
Agree 


Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 
Disagree 


No 
Opinion 


Responses 


Grades JK-2 (2015) 18% 46% 20% 9% 0% 7% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 32% 40% 22% 4% 1%  163 


 
 Strongly 


Agree 
Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 


Disagree 
No 


Opinion 
Responses 


Grades 3-5 (2015) 29% 55% 10% 4% 1% 0% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 25% 55% 13% 7% 0%  114 


 
 Strongly 


Agree 
Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 


Disagree 
No 


Opinion 
Responses 


Grades 6-8 (2015) 18% 49% 18% 8% 3% 3% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 20% 48% 26% 4% 2%  124 


 
Summary: Parent satisfaction with homework remained consistent among all three grade levels. Some 
parents expressed concern that homework in the lower graders was not relevant to subject matter. 
 
Our Homework Policy has a recommended amount of time for students to spend studying at home 


for each grade level. 
 


Is your child's quantity of homework in line with these guidelines? 
 


 Yes No Unsure Responses 
Grades 6-8 (2015) 67% 29% 4% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 67% 27% 6% 124 


 
Summary: Many junior high parent comments indicate they believe their children receive too much 
homework. 
 


Has your child's teacher effectively communicated with you this year? 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 (2015) 61% 32% 6% 1% 1% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 69% 20% 7% 2% 1% 163 


 
Grades 3-5 (2015) 60% 28% 9% 2% 0% 163 







 


 


Grades 3-5 (2014) 64% 25% 8% 2% 2% 114 
 


Grades 6-8 (2015) 26% 43% 26% 5% 0% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 27% 35% 27% 7% 3% 124 


 
Summary: A majority of the elementary school parents are pleased with the level of communication 
from teachers. Parents indicated they would like more communication from junior high teachers. 


 
During Parent/Teacher conferences, please rate the discussion of the following topics for your child 


regarding: 
 
 


Academic Progress 
 


 Adequate Not enough 
info 


Not 
Discussed 


Responses 


Grades JK-2 (2015) 94% 5% 1% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 93% 6% 2% 163 


 
Grades 3-5 (2015) 92% 7% 1% 162 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 95% 2% 3% 114 


 
Grades 6-8 (2015) 88% 11% 1% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 91% 7% 2% 124 


 
Social Emotional 


 
 Adequate Not enough 


info 
Not 


Discussed 
Responses 


Grades JK-2 (2015) 92% 7% 1% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 94% 4% 2% 163 


 
Grades 3-5 (2015) 92% 7% 1% 162 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 92% 4% 4% 113 


 
Grades 6-8 (2015) 70% 20% 10% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 70% 15% 15% 124 


 
Standardized Tests 


 
 Adequate Not enough 


info 
Not 


Discussed 
Responses 







 


 


Grades JK-2 (2015) 61% 9% 29% 173 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 64% 9% 28% 160 


 
Grades 3-5 (2015) 83% 12% 6% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 85% 11% 4% 114 


 
Grades 6-8 (2015) 61% 21% 18% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 67% 18% 15% 124 


     
 


Enrichment Opportunities 
 


 Adequate Not enough 
info 


Not 
Discussed 


Responses 


Grades JK-2 (2015) 60% 21% 20% 174 
Grades JK-2 (2014) 71% 14% 15% 161 


 
Grades 3-5 (2015) 73% 21% 6% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 68% 20% 12% 114 


 
Grades 6-8 (2015) 44% 22% 33% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 49% 22% 29% 124 


 
Summary: Many parents expressed the desire to have more information about PARCC testing 
incorporated into parent/teacher conferences. Surveyed parents indicated they were unsure what was 
meant by enrichment opportunities and parents generally expressed the desire for longer parent/teacher 
conferences.  
 


The following areas were identified as action items in the Strategic Plan. Please note your general 
satisfaction with regards to: 


 
 


Response to Intervention 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 26% 28% 10% 4% 31% 173 
Grades 3-5 26% 35% 12% 2% 24% 162 
Grades 6-8 15% 26% 10% 5% 43% 172 


 
Gifted Intervention 


 







 


 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 10% 10% 9% 10% 61% 174 
Grades 3-5 11% 23% 9% 6% 50% 163 
Grades 6-8 8% 16% 6% 10% 60% 174 


 
English/Language Arts 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades JK-2 29% 42% 13% 1% 15% 173 
Grades 3-5 26% 55% 8% 1% 11% 160 
Grades 6-8 25% 48% 15% 1% 12% 172 


 
In School/Extracurriculars 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades JK-2 19% 42% 9% 4% 26% 170 
Grades 3-5 25% 45% 14% 2% 13% 161 
Grades 6-8 19% 51% 14% 2% 15% 173 


 
Math 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades JK-2 32% 47% 14% 1% 6% 172 
Grades 3-5 35% 50% 8% 2% 5% 163 
Grades 6-8 34% 52% 7% 1% 6% 174 


 
 


Physical Education 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 20% 56% 12% 2% 10% 173 
Grades 3-5 23% 51% 12% 3% 10% 162 
Grades 6-8 25% 44% 12% 9% 11% 174 


 
Social Science 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades JK-2 26% 49% 11% 1% 13% 172 
Grades 3-5 27% 59% 6% 1% 8% 162 
Grades 6-8 38% 47% 9% 1% 6% 172 


 







 


 


Science 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 27% 43% 16% 2% 12% 173 
Grades 3-5 22% 59% 11% 1% 7% 162 
Grades 6-8 32% 53% 7% 2% 7% 174 


 
World Language 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades JK-2 35% 43% 8% 2% 12% 173 
Grades 3-5 35% 43% 8% 4% 10% 163 
Grades 6-8 25% 55% 11% 1% 9% 174 


 
Social and Emotional Learning 


 
 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 


Grades JK-2 26% 44% 13% 3% 15% 172 
Grades 3-5 22% 53% 7% 3% 14% 161 
Grades 6-8 15% 43% 11% 4% 28% 170 


 
Summary: Parents expressed concern for the upcoming decrease in world language curriculum 
instruction. A number of parents commented they would like to see a more fun, relaxed physical 
education curriculum.  
 


This year, the Board of Education implemented Year 2 of its Strategic Plan. Are you satisfied with the 
progress that has been made in the four goal areas: Curriculum, Communication, Culture and 


Finance/Facilities? 
 


 Yes No Unsure 
Grades JK-2 55% 11% 34% 
Grades 3-5 60% 9% 31% 
Grades 6-8 51% 11% 39% 


 
Summary: Parents specifically referenced the communication section in the comments and indicated that 
Board communication has improved. Some parents referenced the school culture as an area of focus. 


 
Math in Focus and Everyday Count Calendar Math is the foundation of our math curriculum which is 


implemented for grades K-5. Please rate your satisfaction with these curricular materials. 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades JK-2 (2015) 34% 42% 16% 2% 7% 174 







 


 


Grades JK-2 (2014) 42% 36% 6% 5% 12% 163 
 


Grades 3-5 (2015) 26% 45% 22% 5% 2% 163 
Grades 3-5 (2014) 25% 38% 19% 8% 11% 114 


 
Summary: Parent comments were split on the merits of the Math in Focus curriculum. Some parents 
believed the curriculum to be outstanding while others criticized the program for being too fast-paced. 
 
During the past school year, the Junior High has been piloting a new science program called IQWST or 
Investigating and Questioning Our World through Science. Please rate your satisfaction with the pilot 


program. 
 


 Excellent Good Fair Poor No Opinion Responses 
Grades 6-8 (2015) 20% 45% 13% 5% 17% 174 
Grades 6-8 (2014) 18% 32% 21% 11% 18% 124 


 
Summary: Parents were generally satisfied with the IQWST curriculum. Many parents specifically 
mentioned the teachers as the reason for their satisfaction. 








DRAFT 
Principal Goals 


for the 2015-2016 School Year 
 
 
School Leadership Structure and Team 
 


1. By October 30, 2015, develop a professional development plan for the front office staff 
and submit the plan to the Superintendent.  The plan should include an assessment of 
the front office procedures, standards and measures of front office roles and 
responsibilities including goal setting meeting with each of the front office staff.  The 
plan should conclude with a detailed professional development plan for each front office 
staff member. By the December Board meeting, a written update of the front office staff 
with a final recommendation for responsibilities or personnel changes to the Board of 
Education. 


 
2. By October 15, 2015, the goals, timeline, monitoring and evaluation plan for the 


Instructional Facilitator will be submitted to the Superintendent.  By the February Board 
of Education meeting, a final report summarizing the evaluation and impact of the 
position will be submitted to the Superintendent and Board of Education with the 
expectation that reports of progress monitoring will be submitted to the Superintendent 
and Board throughout the year. 


 
3. Develop a comprehensive professional development program and revisit the current 


committee and teacher leadership structure. By November 2015, present a draft to the 
superintendent for approval. 


 
 


Relationship Building with Faculty, Staff, and Community 
 


4. By November 1, 2015, develop a plan to enhance the relationships with faculty, staff and 
parents addressing Domain IV of the Performance Standards for School Leaders and the 
Four Cornerstone Behaviors to the Superintendent. At the December and March Board 
meeting, provide a written report of the plan and provide updates and evidence of 
monitoring Board of Education.  
 


 
Vision and Strategic Plan Implementation 
 


5. By September 2015, work with the Superintendent and the Board of Education to review 
results from Year 2 of the Strategic Plan and make any necessary modifications for Year 
3.  Throughout the 2015-2016 school year, continue to implement the Strategic Plan Year 
3 objectives and provide regular updates to the Superintendent and the Board of 
Education.  
 


6. By June 2016, develop a vision statement for The Joseph Sears School identify the focus 
and purpose driving our as it relates to the district mission. 


 
Administrative Restructure 







DRAFT 
 


7. By November 1, 2015, develop a plan in conjunction with the Superintendent and 
Director of Student Services to review, assess and adjust the roles and responsibilities of 
each administrator as outlined for the 2015-2016 school year.  By January 1, 2016, 
provide a written assessment of the roles and responsibilities of each administrator for 
the 2015-2016 school year to the Board of Education. The Principal’s assessment should 
include the impact of the new administrative structure on the faculty and staff, 
administrative leadership team, community and the overall impact on student 
performance. 


 
Communication 
 


8. By October 1, 2015, establish a system with the Communication Coordinator to examine 
communications for tone, accuracy and message. 


 
Student Achievement 
 


9. By January 1, 2016, in consultation with the Superintendent and the Board of Education, 
propose rigorous metrics for measuring student progress and achievement.  With 
faculty and staff, formulate a multi-year plan for implementing these measures moving 
forward. 
 


10. By January 4, 2016, refine and revise Data Dive process to establish goal-setting 
protocols, identify data sources and integrate formative, interim and summative 
assessments.  
 


11. By March 1, 2016, a philosophy of mathematics will be developed and presented to the 
School Board for adoption including the scope of programming and structure will align 
to meet this mission. 


 
12. By the June 2016 Board meeting, establish a comprehensive school wide English 


Language Arts program and the timeline for implementation and adoption. 
 
 
Culture 
 


13. As an extension of Domain IV and goal #4, develop specific strategies across faculty, 
students, and parents to foster a culture of teamwork, trust, collaboration and 
instructional/academic excellence.  This will be measured via periodic faculty surveys 
and the annual parent and faculty surveys taken at the end of the school year. 
 








 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
From: Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal 
 
Date: August 17, 2015 
 
RE: Principal’s Report 
 
 
 
School Site Updates: 
 


1. Advisory/Homeroom class assignments will be mailed on Thursday, August 20th and the 
PowerSchool portal will open for families of 6th-8th graders on Friday, August 21st.  
Opening packets including key dates and important information for the expectations and 
schedules for the start of school will be included in this information. 
 


2. Master Schedule overview document is prepared and will be shared with parents in the 
opening mailing.  We will hold information sessions before the 6th-8th grade curriculum 
night and before the 5th grade curriculum night to go over the changes in the schedule and 
answer questions. We will be gathering the Frequently Asked Questions and creating a 
document to capture and answer these as a reference for parents. 
 


3. PARCC has announced the test results will not be made available for last year’s testing 
until some time after January 2016.  In addition, the PARCC test will only be given once 
this May and will be administered as a combination of the two types of tests that were 
administered SY 2015-16. There will be essays, extended response and multiple choice 
type questions. 


 
4. We will administer Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) testing 3 times over the course 


of the school year. For an over view of MAP, please read the article linked here. Since 
MAP is ultimately a growth indicator assessment and should be used to help a student 
monitor their own growth relative to their own performance, we will use this data to assist 
students in setting academic goals and to assist us in reflecting on teaching and learning.  
The test has shifted to include Common Core State Standard aligned Learning Outcomes 
that will help students identify what skills the are achieving 25%, 50% and 75% of the 
time.  To cite Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA): “Many educators choose to 
gain key information from assessments that measure student achievement and growth, and 
for good reason: just as you might use a yardstick to measure your child’s physical 
growth, assessments can provide an objective, consistent measure of academic growth.”   


 
It is the ability to identify how, when and where each student is growing in terms of what 
students know, understand and can do with the information that makes the Rasch UnIT 
(RIT) score that comes form the MAP so powerful. In addition, they have refined their 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


data collection options and we will be able to provide results that also illustrate how each 
child is performing relative to students from the same demographic, same gender, grade 
level and in the same RIT band are progressing. These visual reports will be made 
available to the parents after the winter administration of the test. 
 
We are hoping to use the primary grade test to begin gathering data in first grade.  At the 
September board meeting, we will present MAP data and an overview of the information 
it provides. 
 


Science Scope and Sequence and Materials Audits:  
We are making great strides in completing scope and sequences in order to be prepared with the 
pilot of materials in the Elementary classrooms. Foss kit training began in the beginning of 
August, and all grades except fifth grade have been trained and fleshed out their Scope and 
Sequence work for the first unit.  Fifth grade will be starting off the year with a different unit 
because their Foss pilot materials will not be ready until after the start of the school year.  Junior 
High worked this summer to audit their scope and sequence and the materials that come with 
IQWEST. They identified strengths and weaknesses and areas they need to supplement to enrich 
the program.  They will continue to take on the work and are beginning to create Sourcebooks of 
materials that will meet the rigor of NGSS and strengthen the materials provided in IQWEST. 
 
English Language Arts: 
Carol Jago lead an intensive 4 day workshop over the summer for 5th-8th grade ELA and Social 
Studies teachers looking at informational text and the craft of argumentative writing.  Teachers 
worked on revising lesson plans and their scope and sequence and had the opportunity to work 
together to look at the articulation through our program.  In reviewing the curriculum triangle, 
teachers spent time looking at learning targets and identifying what children will know, 
understand and do through the daily lessons and units.  Rubrics are in development that will align 
across grade levels and demonstrate a progression of skills. 
 
In Junior High, we are going to pilot the DBQ Projects materials for 8th grade English/Language 
Arts.  This project pairs literary works with a battery of primary source documents and inquiry 
based questions that demands that children analyze, synthesize and evaluate text, themes, 
historical implications and literary impact in a format that emulates what they are asked to do on 
AP exams and in real world application of learning. 
 
Providing High Quality Assessments:   
Working with Tony Frontier, a small professional learning cohort will work to identify critical 
elements of High Quality Assessments, use current research to review and revise current 
assessments and generate new ones moving forward, and identify a balance between formative 
and summative assessment strategies that build student ownership in their learning.  This work 
aligns with the PERA law and the student growth model that will become mandatory Fall 2016, 
and will build capacity in our teaching body to lead this work for others.  Dr. Frontier just co-
authored Creating Passionate Learners: Engaging today’s students for tomorrow’s world. Reviews 
stated the following: “Tony Frontier works with teachers and school leaders nationally and 
internationally to help them prioritize efforts to improve student engagement and student learning. 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


With expertise in student engagement, formative assessment, effective instruction, and strategic 
planning, Frontier emphasizes a systems approach to build capacity to empower teachers to 
improve each student’s schooling experience.”  
 








 


 


 
 


Curriculum -- Response to Intervention / Gifted 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Incorporate Multi-Tiered System of 
Support (MTSS) language into the 
academic lexicon of the Joseph Sears 
School along side Response to 
Intervention (RtI). 


SY 2015-2016 • Produce documents 
specifying new procedures 
and distribute to the Sears 
community 


• Update student handbook 
with revised material 


Revise current RtI/MTSS procedures, 
assessments, tiers and 
intervention/enrichment material. 


SY 2015-2016  
• Produce documents 


specifying new procedures 
and distribute to the Sears 
community 


• Update student handbook 
with revised materials 
 


Distribute RtI/MTSS printed 
information to the community, as well 
as hold forum to discuss 
differentiation, intervention and 
identifying advanced learners. 
    


SY 2015-2016 • Produce and distribute 
documents about MTSS to 
the Sears Community 


• Host a forum about RtI/Gifted 
information 


Develop and implement comprehensive 
program to meet the needs of gifted 
students. This includes revisiting the 


SY 2015-2016 • Produce and present a 
document containing 
summary of committee work 







 


 


district’s philosophy on Gifted 
Education, revisiting the identification 
tools and system and defining elements 
of the program. 


 
 
 


and recommendations to the 
Board of Education 


• Communicate all relevant 
changes to Sears parents, 
faculty and community 
members 


 
 
 


Curriculum -- Mathematics 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Establish a comprehensive 
school-wide mathematics 
program. 


Summer 2015 • Define the scope and 
sequence of the mathematics 
program from K-8th grade 


• Create a philosophy statement 
for mathematics 


• Identify common terms for 
mathematics program and 
identify best practices 


• Update scope and sequence 
for elementary-level 
mathematics courses 


• Review Math in Focus at the 
elementary level and identify 
areas of weakness 


SY 2015-2016 • Review and revise K-5th 







 


 


grade Math in Focus materials 
and align K-5th grade scope 
and sequence 


• Establish a scope and 
sequence, learning targets and 
assessment structure K-8 to 
measure student growth and 
mastery. 


• Outline mathematics course 
offerings for junior high, 
including the creation of 
syllabi and course transition 
requirements 


• Integrate and verify the use of 
Standards for Mathematical 
Practices into K-5th grade 
mathematics curriculum 


• Research and initial findings 
and make a recommendation 
for junior high math materials 


• Receive a recommendation on 
overall mathematics program 
from New Trier High School 


• Audit math materials to align 
with CCSS and standards of 
mathematical practices 


 
SY 2016-2017 


• Present mathematics 
curriculum to the Kenilworth 
Board of Education for 
approval 


 







 


 


 
 


Curriculum – Humanities 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Establish a comprehensive 
school-wide English Language 
Arts program. 


Summer 2015 • Review CCSS for Anchor 1 
• Establish a rubric for junior 


high argumentative/opinion 
writing 


• Identify SS and Science CCSS 
integrated into ELA and 
rubric to align for junior high 
writing 


• Establish a bank of key terms 
for junior high writing 


• Revise scope and sequence 
and place on a standard 
format for elementary writing 


• Audit inventory/materials 
used for elementary writing 


• Establish a common rubric for 
elementary writing 


SY 2015-2016 • Identify learning targets 
across all grade levels 


• Identify research materials 
and materials indicating best 
practices for 
English/Language Arts 







 


 


SY 2016-2017 • Continue to develop and 
refine English/Language Arts 
curriculum 


• Research and develop 
additional educational 
materials 


 


SY 2017-2018 • Review and audit reading and 
writing programs then update 
as needed  


• Host parent meetings to share 
the shift in practice and 
writing expectations 


• Present English/Language 
Arts curriculum to the 
Kenilworth Board of 
Education for approval 
 


Foster learning that broadens 
perspectives and engages all 
students in World Language in 
academic and authentic 
experiences. 


SY 2015-2016 
 


• Refine and publish the 
philosophy of world language 


• Examine World Language 
delivery model, identify any 
changes and shifts and publish 
this with the philosophy 


SY 2016-2017 • Research and revisit scope 
and sequence of World 
Language curriculum by the 
end of the year 


• Educate the Sears community 







 


 


in shifts in World Language 
instruction 


Establish a comprehensive 
school wide Social Science 
program. 


Summer 2015 • Establish a Social Science 
philosophy 


• Begin development of grades 
6-8 scope and sequence, 
learning targets, EQs and 
curriculum 


SY 2015-2016 • Publish a philosophy detailing 
the Social Science philosophy 


• Align Social Science work 
with C3 standards 


• Review and research materials 
• Identify rubrics  


 
 


Curriculum – Professional Development 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Refine and revise a school-wide 
data plan 


Summer 2015 • Devise a matrix for data 
review 


• Establish a data review 
protocol 


• Review calendar dates relevant 
to data distribution and 
reception 







 


 


SY 2015-2016 • Establish goal setting protocol 
with regard to data analysis for 
school, teachers and students 


• Identify data sources to be 
used in monitoring progress 
toward growth goals 


• Create a bank of common 
terms around data and 
assessment 


• Integrate formative, interim 
and summative assessments 


• Establish board data 
presentation schedule 


Establish a professional 
development plan that meets the 
needs of teachers and student 
growth. The plan must include a 
teacher effectiveness model that 
includes an evaluation and 
student growth model that is 
KEA and Board approved. 


SY 2015-2016 • Create an annual plan for 
professional development 
opportunities 


• Identify goals and outcomes 
for professional development 


• Create a schedule of events 
and support opportunities 


• Create professional 
development feedback 
structures 


• Establish a professional 
development budget and 
justification document 


• Revise the summer 
professional development plan 


• Update the teacher evaluation 
document and pilot of the 
PERA Student Growth model 







 


 


 
 
 


Culture 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Establish and implement school 
procedures (rules, discipline, 
playground rules, hallway, 
lunchroom, etc.) 


SY 2015-2016 • Monitor progress through 
annual parent, faculty and staff 
surveys 


Imbed the 4 cornerstones into 
the culture 


SY 2015-2016 • Monitor progress through 
annual parent, faculty and staff 
surveys 


Establish a school-wide 
discipline plan 


SY 2015-2016 • Monitor progress through 
annual parent, faculty and staff 
surveys 


Update the school committee 
structure 


SY 2015-2016 • Review the current committee 
structure and align committees 
with purpose, work and 
timelines 


• Define committees and 
identify participation structure 
in accordance with each 
committee’s purpose and goals 


• Create documentation 
identifying and framing 
committees and the new 
committee structure 







 


 


Establish a curriculum renewal 
process that meets the needs of 
school, grade level and 
department 


SY 2015-2016  


 
 


Communication 
 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Assess and improve 
school communication 
strategies for all 
parents, students and 
community members 


SY 2015-2016 • Establish a calendar for community gatherings 
and workshops 


• Update teacher newsletter and communication 
format to ensure access to information 


• Establish a print newsletter and specify the 
format, frequency of publication and method 
of distribution 


• Conduct regular surveys at the end of 
meetings, training opportunities. Ensure these 
notes and results are public. 


• Gather data from stakeholders on 
communication effectiveness 


• Create outlet for student input 
 


Summer 2016 • Review and revise communications strategies 
based on feedback from teachers, parents and 
community members 


Assess and 
communicate 


SY 2015-2016 • Publish a document that articulates the roles 
and responsibilities of administrators and 







 


 


Kenilworth School 
District No. 38’s 
organizational 
structure including the 
responsibilities of 
administrators 


support staff 
• Articulate the roles and responsibilities of 


administrators and support staff through a 
series of meet and greets 


• Monitor progress through annual surveys and 
content contained in the Joseph Sears Letter, 
annual report and district website 


Ensure transparency 
and trust by the Board 
of Education and 
Administration 
regarding 
deliberations and 
decision-making.  


SY 2015-2016 • Provide opportunities for informal 
communication with the community and 
Board Members 


• Re-assess satisfaction and progress through a 
mid-year survey (December) and an end of 
year survey (June) 


Organize information 
comprehensively and 
logically for ease of 
use and retrieval 


SY 2015-2016 • Improve the organization and accessibility of 
the information on the District website 


• Monitor progress through surveys on ease-of-
navigation of information on website 


Reach all members of 
the Kenilworth School 
District No. 38 
community 


SY 2015-2016 • Reach out to residents without children 
enrolled at the Joseph Sears School through 
community forums 


• Continue to promote listen@kenilworth38.org 
• Create a communications plan outlining 


internal and external communications 
• Facilitate an employee benefit fair to improve 


awareness and understanding of employee 
benefits 


• Conduct one-on-one meetings between the 
Superintendent and each District employee to 
provide opportunity for direct dialog 







 


 


Demonstrate respect 
for stakeholders 
through timely 
communications 


SY 2015-2016 • Establish a calendar including consistent 
content for regularly occurring administrative 
communications to parents 


• Establish a calendar including consistent 
content for regularly occurring administrative 
communications to faculty and staff 


• Monitor progress through survey data obtained 
from parents, faculty and staff 


 


Finance 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Establish and sustain a financial plan 
that supports the instructional and 
facility needs of the District, while 
maintaining the Board of Education’s 
minimum fund balance guidelines 


SY 2015-2016 • Review the District’s historical 
financial data and future 
financial projections for the 
Operations and Maintenance 
Fund 


• Determine the annual Master 
Facility Plan Budget to ensure 
that the District stays within the 
minimum fund balance 
guidelines 


• Confirm the District’s funding 
commitment to future facility 
projects 


• Determine the span of years for 
the Master Facility Plan Budget 


• Review the District’s future 
initiatives 







 


 


• Determine the District’s 
property tax revenue 
need/requirement in 
conjunction with the District’s 
per pupil expenditure cost 


• Determine if there is a way to 
flatten the increase slope for 
taxpayers 


• Negotiate a KEA contract that 
promotes the District mission 
statement, while maintaining 
fiscal integrity and efficiency 


• Research and implement new 
financial software to improve 
the accuracy and efficiency of 
the Business Office 


• Research and solicit RFP's for 
banking services to ensure 
efficient use of District Funds 


• Research and solicit RFP's for 
investment brokers to ensure 
efficient use of the District's 
fund balance 


 


Facilities 


Objective Timeline Action Plan 


Identify and prioritize the facility 
needs of the District, which support 


SY 2015-2016 • Determine the process for the 
implementation of the District’s 







 


 


the Board of Education’s vision for 
the Joseph Sears School 


Master Facility Plan 
• Review the District’s existing 


Master Facility Plan 
• Determine the District’s current 


facility needs 
• Prioritize the District’s facility 


needs 
• Establish a facility project 


schedule 
• Determine the process for 


addressing the District’s 
regular, annual capital projects 
list (non-master facility 
projects) 


• Review the District’s current 
capital project needs 


• Develop a procedure for 
requesting and approving 
regular annual capital projects 


• Research and solicit RFPs for 
architectural services to ensure 
efficient use of building space 
and building funds 


 
 








 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 
To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO  
 
Date: August 17, 2015 
 
RE: Proposed Strategic Plan Objectives and Action Items for the 2015-2016 School Year 
 
 
 
At the July 2015 Strategic Planning Meeting, the Kenilworth Board of Education re-established 
the following four goals: 
 
Curriculum: Each student will master key skills across disciplines, fostering a passion for learning 
through experiences that develop reflective and critical thinking, creativity and collaboration  
 
Culture: Foster a welcoming culture that promotes perseverance, mutual respect and trust, 
accountability, citizenship and passion for learning  
 
Communication: Evaluate and communicate the Kenilworth School District No. 38 and The Joseph 
Sears School strategies, decisions, plans and performance consistently, timely, and 
comprehensively to all stakeholders  
 
Finance and Facilities: Provide a financial foundation to support the educational and long-term 
facility needs of the District without the need for a referendum in the foreseeable future 
 
Based on these goals, each administrator created objectives and action items to facilitate these 
goals for the 2015-2016 school year.  Attached is a draft copy of the Proposed Strategic Plan 
Objectives and Action Items for your review.  The Administration is working with the faculty and 
staff to offer opportunities to provide feedback on the proposal. The final draft will be presented 
for Board approval at the September Board meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 








 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


To: Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO 
 
Date: August 17, 2015 
 
RE: Superintendent’s Report 
 
 
As we prepare to start the school year, there are a few items I would like to highlight for the 
Board. 
 
School Crossing in the 500 Block of Kenilworth - Update 
At the beginning of the 2014 school year, a number of parents living in the southwest corner of 
the community requested that a crossing guard be posted to assist Sears School children crossing 
Kenilworth Ave. west of Green Bay. A school crossing has never been established at this location 
in the past however; the requesting families identified 14 children living the area, which would 
benefit from this crossing.   


 
A temporary crossing location was established with police personnel in order to evaluate the 
safety of the location and collect data on the number of children utilizing the crossing.  The 
District provided a crossing guard, in order to backfill the crossing guard position vacated by the 
police.  Over the course of the school year, usage of the crossing changed with the seasons.  
During the nice fall and spring months, 6 children used the crossing regularly.  During the winter 
months, one child used the crossing with regularity.   


 
In order to have a crossing, staff must be posted at the location independent of weather or season.  
Additionally, curb cuts with walkways to the sidewalk and street striping must be added in order 
to comply with state standards.  Residents in the area have voiced opposition to a walkway being 
placed in the parkway in area of their homes.  The Kenilworth Police Department does not believe 
the volume of children utilizing the crossing warrants establishing a permanent crossing location.   


 
Safety is always the top priority for our District and the Kenilworth Police Department. After an 
entire school year of monitoring this intersection, the Kenilworth Police believes this is a safe 
intersection. Based on this information, the Administrative Leadership Team has decided to 
discontinue staffing the school crossing at the 500 block of Kenilworth.  


 
This information has been communicated to all of the families that will be affected by this 
change. The District’s Guidelines for Students Traveling to and from Sears School have also been 
updated to reflect this change. The District will continue to work the Kenilworth Police 
Department to monitor this intersection. 
 
New Traffic Pattern 
Over the years, Kenilworth has experienced a large daily influx of New Trier High School traffic 
flowing through the residential streets in the northeast quadrant of Kenilworth for the morning 







 


DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, SUPERINTENDENT / CHIEF SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICER  
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


drop off. In effort to address this concern, the Village of Kenilworth has recommended changes to 
the traffic pattern are described below. 
 
Before the start of the current New Trier school year, No Thru Traffic to Winnetka Ave. signs will 
be added for northbound traffic on Essex Rd. at Kenilworth Ave. and Warwick Rd. at Kenilworth 
Ave. Do Not Enter School Days 7:30 to 8:30 a.m. signs will be added for northbound traffic on 
Essex Rd. at Cumberland Ave., Warwick Rd. at Cumberland Ave. and Abbotsford Rd. at Ivy Ct. 
These new efforts will be geared toward improving safety by reducing the volume of traffic on 
our residential streets near the Joseph Sears School. 
 
For further information on the new traffic pattern, please see the attached memo from the Village 
of Kenilworth. 
 
Meet the New Administrative Leadership Team 
The Administrative Leadership Team will hold two community meet and greet sessions on 
August 20 to provide the option for informal conversation between parents and school 
administrators. 
 
The first session, Stay and Play, takes place from 8:30 to 9:30 a.m. The second session, Cookies 
and Conversation, takes place from 6 to 7 p.m. in Faculty Hall. Cookies and 
Conversation includes the same information discussed in the first session, only presented in a 
more formal setting. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 
 
 


















